Board of Commissioners
Frank Spence – Chairman
Robert Stevens – Vice-Chair
Dirk Rohne – Secretary
James Campbell – Treasurer
Scott McClaine – Assistant Secretary/Treasurer

422 Gateway Ave, Suite 100
Astoria, OR 97103
Phone: (503) 741-3300
Fax: (503) 741-3345
www.portofastoria.com

Regular Session
November 2, 2021 @ 4:00 PM
Via Videoconference*
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
*To maintain social distancing, this meeting will be held via Zoom. Please see page 2 for login instructions.
Public comment can be submitted via email to admin@portofastoria.com until 5PM on Monday, November 1,
2021. A link to the recording will be available on the Port website at www.portofastoria.com.

Agenda
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
COMMISSION REPORTS
CHANGES/ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA
PUBLIC COMMENT – for items on the agenda, when not covered by a public hearing
This is an opportunity to speak to the Commission for 3 minutes regarding any item on the agenda.
Public comment received by the deadline will be read aloud at the meeting.

7. CONSENT CALENDAR:
a. Meeting Minutes – 10/05/2021 Regular Session Minutes................................................. 3
b. Financials – September 2021 .............................................................................................. 8
c. Event Calendar – November 2021 .................................................................................... 13
8. PRESENTATION:
a. Audit Results Presentation by Talbot, Korvola & Warwick, LLP ....................................... 14
9. ACTION:
a. Business Oregon Contract Approval – Port Planning and Marketing Fund Boatyard
Feasibility Study ................................................................................................................ 80
10. PUBLIC COMMENT – for non-agenda items
This is an opportunity to speak to the Commission for 3 minutes regarding Port concerns not on the agenda.
Public comment received by the deadline will be read aloud during the meeting.

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMMENTS
12. UPCOMING MEETING DATES:
a. Workshop Session – November 16, 2021 at 4:00 PM
b. Regular Session – December 7, 2021 at 4:00 PM
13. ADJOURN

Please Note:
Agenda packets are available online at: https://www.portofastoria.com/CommissionMeetings/AgendaMinutes.aspx
Please allow time for the normal posting procedure for agendas and meeting packets.
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Board of Commissioners
HOW TO JOIN THE ZOOM MEETING:
Online:

Direct link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86905881635?pwd=amhtTTBFcE9NUElxNy9hYTFPQTIzQT09
Or go to Zoom.us/join and enter Meeting ID: 869 0588 1635, Passcode: 422

Dial In:

(669) 900-6833, Meeting ID: 869 0588 1635, Passcode: 422
This meeting is accessible to persons with disabilities or persons who wish to attend but
do not have computer access or cell phone access. If you require special accommodations,
please contact the Port of Astoria at least 48 hours prior to the meeting by calling
(503) 741-3300 or via email at admin@portofastoria.com.

Please Note:
Agenda packets are available online at:
https://www.portofastoria.com/CommissionMeetings/AgendaMinutes.aspx

Please allow time for the normal posting procedure for agendas and meeting packets.
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MEETING MINUTES
OCTOBER 5, 2021

PORT OF ASTORIA
REGULAR SESSION
Meeting held via videoconference due to social distancing measures

Call to Order:
Chairman Spence called the Regular Session to order at 4:01 PM.
Roll Call:
Commissioners Present: Frank Spence; Robert Stevens; Dirk Rohne; Jim Campbell; and Scott McClaine.
Staff Present: Executive Director Will Isom; Deputy Director Matt McGrath; Finance & HR Manager Jim
Grey; Accounting & Business Services Manager Melanie Howard; Marina Manager Janice Burk; and
Executive Assistant / Administrative Coordinator Stacy Bandy.
Port Counsel: Eileen Eakins was not present for this session.
Also Attending: Cindy Yingst of The Columbia Press; Ethan Myers of The Astorian; and David Oser of
the Port of Astoria Finance Committee.
Commission Reports:
Commissioner Campbell had nothing to report.
Commissioner Stevens reported on the following:
• Has been in contact with Representative Weber’s office to arrange a visit to the Port. This item will
be added to the agenda for further discussion.
Commissioner Rohne reported on the following:
• Spoke with Mayor Bruce Jones and City Counsellor Tom Brownson after East Basin collapse;
conversations were positive and productive. Will look to the city for partnership as the city has had
success with granting agencies under similar circumstances.
• Attended CEDR meeting.
Commissioner McClaine reported on the following:
• Impressed by the response (level of control) at the East Basin the day of the collapse by the
Executive Director and Deputy Director.
Commissioner Spence reported on the following:
• Attended the Port Waterfront Master Plan Stakeholder Interview with Senator Johnson,
Representative Weber, and the Regional Solutions Team hosted by Walker Macy.
• Inquires if the Port has received a response from Business Oregon for the grant application for the
Boatyard feasibility study. Deputy Director, Matt McGrath, responds that the grant has been
approved in the amount of roughly $66,500. Spence notes that Senator Johnson is concerned about
potential ground contamination from chemical agents that are being used by individuals cleaning
their boats and urges this to be included in the study.
• The Pride of America has returned, notes the ship looks great with fresh paint.
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Changes/Additions to the Agenda:
Item 8e. Representative Weber Visit to the Port has been added to the agenda. Spence asked for a
motion to approve the agenda as amended.
Commissioner Stevens moved to approve the agenda as amended. Commissioner McClaine
seconded. The motion carried unanimously 5-0 amongst the Commissioners present.
Public Comment for items on the agenda:
There were no requests for public comment.
Consent Calendar:
The Consent Calendar consisted of the following:
• Meeting Minutes – 09/07/2021 Regular Session and 09/15/2021 Finance Committee Meeting
• Financials – August 2021
• Consent Calendar – October 2021
Commissioner Rohne moved to approve the consent calendar as presented. Commissioner
McClaine seconded. The motion carried unanimously 5-0 amongst the Commissioners present.
Action Items:
8a. East Mooring Basin Causeway Cleanup
Deputy Director Matt McGrath explains that on Tuesday, September 21st roughly around 4pm in
the afternoon the East Basin Causeway collapsed. The causeway was shut down for this potential
eventuality in November of 2018 based on ODOT recommendations. The northernmost 250ft
collapsed, largely because that area is most affected by tidal influences. McGrath notes that the day
before the collapse, he was on the sentinel with contractors to look at the condition of the dock and
determine how to remove the failing portion of the causeway. Once it fell into the water, McGrath
communicated with different agencies to ensure the Port had the correct permits to begin cleanup
and devised a plan to restore power. Currently the boats on Q and R dock and lights along
breakwater are temporarily powered by generator. DSL and the Army Corp of Engineers were
helpful in expediting permits to pull the structure from the water. Work began as planned on
September 27th to remove the portion of the causeway, but instead of removing it from collapsing
posts it was removed from the water. Demolition work and removal began on September 28th; this
work will be completed by the end of the day tomorrow. Underwater photography will be used to
ensure that there are no remaining hazardous structures underwater.
Today the Port is looking for retroactive approval from the commission to get this work completed.
McGrath is confident this work will come in under budget, as this work will be completed quicker
than anticipated. McClaine notes how lucky it was that the causeway collapsed 24 hours after there
were people out there.
Director Isom thanks McGrath for his response to the collapse and added that McGrath was
supposed to be on vacation when the causeway collapsed. McGrath delayed his vacation and
worked during his time off. The Port has been in contact with various government agencies. There
was an immediate concern for people and property and then a focus to put a response plan in place.
Much time has been spent on the phone communicating with various agencies and stakeholders
from all levels of government to explain the history of the East Basin and what has led to where we
are today. Isom thanks Melanie Howard for her efforts keeping the community informed with
updates. It’s important to mention that as a local government, the Port is ripe for criticism. To
address rumors that the Sentinel had impacted the dock causing it to collapse, the rumor is
completely false. The Port video surveillance has been studied and it clearly shows the Sentinel
was not close to the causeway. When an event like this happens, there is hope that something
positive can come out of it. The Port is looking at the possibility of using Connect Oregon dollars
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to help pay for a steel and concrete causeway. The Connect Oregon grant application is due October
29th. Senator Johnson has agreed to be a vocal supporter of the application.
Spence inquires if Senator Merkley’s office has responded to the Port’s request. Isom explains he
has reached out to Merkley’s office, but Isom has not spoken to anyone directly as of yet.
Commissioner Stevens commends the Executive Director and the Deputy Director for their
response and questions how difficult it will be for permitting for other work at the East Basin.
McGrath explains that permitting is not expected to be any easier.
Commissioner Campbell notes that due to the fragile condition of the remaining dock, the Port
needs to ensure proper signage and fencing is in place so that the remaining portion of the dock not
accessible.
Commissioner Rohne moved approve the emergency authorization for the East Mooring Basin
Causeway collapse cleanup in the amount of $132,589. Commissioner McClaine seconded. The
motion carried unanimously 5-0 amongst the Commissioners present.
8b. FY 2021-22 Pile Replacement & Cleanup – Contract Award
McGrath explains that the Port solicited an Invitation to Bid for pile work and general cleanup on
Port Properties for the West Basin, Pier 1, and Pier 2. There are four components to the bid
including replacement of 27 piles within the West Basin Marina, installation of 26 steel fender piles
on Pier 2 East, removal of derelict piles on Pier One West, and removing sunken logs from Slip
One. The initial pre bid meeting was well attended with nine businesses represented. The Port
received five bid proposals. McGrath refers to the bid summaries on page 18 of the packet. The
two front runners were Bergerson and HME Construction. Bergerson submitted the bid with the
lowest cost. McGrath asks for approval from the Commission to negotiate the final contract with
Bergerson Construction. McGrath inquires if the commissioners have any questions.
Commissioner Spence refers to page 61 of the packet and notes how many other pilings are in need
of replacement. McGrath explains that having this map of the conditions of the pilings is a benefit
of the GIS system. There are a growing number of green piles that have been replaced and notes
that this year we are replacing more piling than the Port has replaced in years past.
Commissioner Campbell moved to approve the contract with Bergerson Construction for the FY
2021-22 pile replacement and cleanup. Commissioner Rhone seconded. The motion carried
unanimously 5-0 amongst the Commissioners present.
8c. SDAO Contract for Executive Director Evaluation
Spence explains that the contract with SDAO would be the same as last year for the Executive
Director’s evaluation. Commissioner Campbell questions why an outside individual would perform
the evaluation when it is the Commission’s job to evaluate the Executive Director. Spence explains
that the commissioners would still evaluate the executive director, but George Dunkel would act as
a neutral party to facilitate the evaluation. The discussion amongst the Port Commissioners
continues, for details see meeting audio.
Commissioner Rohne moved to approve the consulting agreement with SDAO for the Executive
Director’s evaluation. Commissioner McClaine seconded. The roll call vote occurred as follows:
Commissioner McClaine: Yes
Commissioner Rohne: Yes
Commissioner Stevens: Yes
Commissioner Campbell: No
Commissioner Spence: Yes
The motion carried with a majority vote.
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8d. Landye Bennett Blumstein Agreement Modification
Isom notes that progress has been made regarding the ongoing negotiations in regard to AOC4.
David Blount, the Port’s attorney at Landye Bennet, has agreed to reduce his fee in order to finalize
negotiations with DEQ. Isom asks for Commission approval to reduce David Blount’s fee to
$250,000. Isom notes he has already signed the document with the auditor’s approval, but did want
to bring this item to the Commission for formal approval. Commissioner Rohne commented on
how grateful the Port is to its legal counsel for their hard work and for offering such a large
reduction in fees.
Commissioner Rohne moved to approve the reduction of fees from Landye Bennet Blumstein from
$833,000 to $250,000. Commissioner Stevens seconded. The motion carried unanimously 5-0
amongst the Commissioners present.
8e. Representative Weber Proposed Agenda for Port Visit
Spence thanks Stevens for his ownership of this project. Stevens explains he has discussed the
proposed agenda with Katy Pritchard from Representative Weber’s office. The date is set for
November 18th. The Port will take about a half day of the representative’s time. Steven’s prefaces
that he is open to suggestions for Weber’s visit. The proposed itinerary will begin at 8:30 am at the
Port administrative offices with a meet-and-greet and continental breakfast. Commissioners will
rotate attendance throughout the day. The Deputy Director will guide Weber on a walking tour of
Pier 2, followed by a working lunch. The day will end with a tour of the Airport by the Deputy
Director and two Commissioners (an aviator should be included). Stevens notes a briefing book
should be built for Weber. Stevens asks for questions and notes he’d like to send the agenda to
Weber’s staff by the end of the week. There was consensus among the commissioners for Weber’s
visit.
Advisory Items:
9a. Fourth Quarter Financials
Howard explains that the audit team has been onsite at the Port offices conducting their final field
work. The audit is going well. The Port is ahead of schedule with providing the auditors with the
materials they need. Howard begins by referring to the fourth quarter financials on page 70 in the
packet. The Port was behind budgeted net profits by roughly $570,000, the bulk of which is
attributed to cancelled cruise ships. Howard asks the commission for questions.
Spence inquires as to the difference in estimate vs actual for utility revenue. Howard explains that
there are substantial swings in water usage depending on the season, especially with the seafood
processors.
Public Comment for items not on the agenda:
There were no requests for public comment.
Executive Director Comments:
• The Pride of America is back for twelve days with an expected departure of October 14th. The Port
will continue to explore various berthing opportunities.
• Senator Murkowski (Alaska) has introduced a bill, the Cruising for Alaska’s Workforce Act,
which is co-sponsored by Senator Wyden. Isom and Bruce Conner have been working with
Wyden’s office to review details and make sure it is something the Port can support. The bill
would allow any vessel with less than 1000 passengers to be able to cruise freely without having
to make a foreign stop.
• For the Waterfront Master Plan, a stakeholder interview was held last week with the Regional
Solutions Team. Attendees from the Port included Isom, McGrath, Commissioner Spence, and
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•
•
•

John Lansing from the Finance Committee. Senator Johnson, Representative Weber, and the
members of the Regional Solutions Team were also in attendance.
I& I airport project has been completed.
Filming at the Port administrative offices will be complete this week.
The Director of the Port of Columbia County resigned effective last week. The Deputy Director,
Sean Clark, has been appointed interim director. Isom and McGrath have reached out to
congratulate him and offer their support.

Upcoming Meeting Dates:
• Workshop Session – October 19, 2021 at 4:00 PM
• Regular Session – November 2, 2021 at 4:00 PM

Adjourned:
Chairman Spence adjourned the meeting at 5:25 PM.

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

________________________________
Frank Spence, Board Chairman
Board of Commissioners

___________________________________
Dirk Rohne, Secretary
Board of Commissioners

Respectfully submitted by:
Stacy Bandy
Executive Assistant – Administrative Coordinator

November 2, 2021
Date Approved by Commission
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SEPTEMBER 2021 FINANCIALS NARRATIVE
For July through September 2021, the Port is showing a $777,376 operating gain. This operating gain is
ahead of prior-year profits by approximately $490,000 and is $386,029 ahead of budget projections.
Operating revenue YTD is at 123% and operating expense is at 107% of seasonally trended budget. Nonoperating income and expense are both at 100% of budget. Total net income YTD is $674,102, which is
$379,584 ahead of budget expectations.
The budget surpluses for dockage and rebilled expenses are $175,895 and $67,058 respectively, of
which roughly $184,218 can be attributed to the Norwegian and other docked cruise ships. Boatyard
gross revenues were roughly 150% of both prior-year and budget expectations. The marina also
performed well, with revenues at 112% of budget and 124% of the prior year.
Total gross fuel sales were ahead of both budget expectations and prior year. Fuel sales at the marina
were 156% of budget, while fuel sales at the airport were 99% of budget.
Personnel services came in $92,294 under budget while materials and services were $222,943 over
budget. The overage for materials and services can mainly be attributed to fuel costs, legal and
professional fees, and utility expense.
Non-operating income and expense were close to budget. Capital projects spending in September was
mostly for Airport project AIP 26 at $1,558,190, which was mostly offset by corresponding grant
revenue. The Port originally budgeted $2.2 million of internal spending for capital projects in fiscal year
2021-22, of which $266,849 has been spent.
Fuel Sales Summary:
Marina Fuel

Unleaded Unleaded Unleaded Unleaded
Sales $
Sales Gal
COGS
Profit
Jul - Sep 2021 $ 383,278
68,995 $ 249,585 $ 133,693
Jul - Sep 2020 $ 212,322
54,576 $ 135,083 $ 77,239

Diesel
Diesel
Diesel
Diesel
Sales $
Sales Gal
COGS
Profit
$ 93,501
24,382 $ 62,431 $ 31,070
$ 51,014
20,969 $ 29,142 $ 21,872

Airport Fuel

100LL
100LL
100LL
100LL
Sales $
Sales Gal
COGS
Profit
$ 30,117
5,674 $ 24,696 $
5,421
$ 37,173
9,438 $ 29,143 $
8,030

Jet A
Jet A
Jet A
Jet A
Sales $
Sales Gal
COGS
Profit
Jul - Sep 2021 $ 179,157
44,288 $ 116,289 $ 62,868
Jul - Sep 2020 $ 188,265
51,435 $
87,283 $ 100,982
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Port of Astoria
Profit & Loss Actual vs. Budget
September 2021

Actuals Jul
2021 - Sep
2021

Actuals Jul
2020 - Sep
2020

Budget Jul
2021 - Sep
2021

Budget
Variance
Through Sep

% of Budget
Through Sep

Full '21-'22
Budget

Operating Revenues
Dockage & Vessel Service

483,151

184,198

307,256

175,895

157%

1,180,000

Lease & Rental Income

577,501

628,106

576,449

1,052

100%

2,163,925

Rebilled Expenses

514,652

389,892

447,594

67,058

115%

1,499,380

Boat Haulout

162,182

110,210

105,592

56,590

154%

390,000

Marina Revenues

281,611

226,706

250,942

30,669

112%

626,480

Fuel Sales

686,053

488,773

516,938

169,115

133%

890,000

4,140

4,020

4,822

-682

86%

8,500

42,172

4,653

25,191

16,981

167%

100,800

2,751,462

2,036,558

2,234,784

516,678

123%

6,859,085

Ticket Revenues
Other Income
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personnel Services
Materials and Services
Total Operating Expenses

Income from Operations

611,104

588,640

703,398

-92,294

87%

2,879,677

1,362,982

1,160,435

1,140,039

222,943

120%

3,444,948

1,974,086

1,749,076

1,843,437

130,649

107%

6,324,625

777,376

287,482

391,347

386,029

199%

534,460

17,469

22,203

22,402

-4,933

78%

841,048

0

0

0

0

0%

139,458

6,921

8,051

7,407

-486

93%

39,500

1,833,360

635,316

1,833,360

0

100%

4,678,334

Non-Operating Revenues
Property Tax Revenues-Genl Fund
Timber Tax Revenues
Other County Revenues
Grants*
Interest Income

727

476

2,290

-1,563

32%

8,250

1,859,014

666,046

1,865,459

-6,445

100%

5,706,590

1,953,199

840,800

1,953,199

0

100%

6,881,192

Interest Expense

1,267

26,338

1,339

-72

95%

95,000

Principal Expense

7,822

19,755

7,750

72

101%

220,000

1,962,288

886,893

1,962,288

-0

100%

7,196,192

674,102

66,635

294,518

379,584

229%

-955,142

Total Non-Operating Revenues

Total Non-Operating Expenses
Capital Outlay*

Total Non-Operating Expenses

Net Income (Loss)

*Capital Outlay/Grants year-to-date budget set to match Revenue/Expense, not seasonally adjusted.
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Port of Astoria
Balance Sheet
As of September 2021

September 30, 2021
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash Funds
Operating Account #1442
Payroll Account #5344
Bornstein MMA #0004

830
1,504,299
54,284
63,285

Money Market #1259

262,214

Total Lewis & Clark Bank

1,884,082

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents

1,884,912

Accounts Receivable

921,889

Other Current Assets

1,404,548

Total Current Assets
Fixed Assets

4,211,349
34,408,861

Other Assets
Long-term Receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

6,275,246

44,895,456

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

198,171
1,464,734
1,662,904

Long Term Liabilities
Accrued Vacation Payable

137,170

Accrued Sick Leave

150,986

Notes Payable

13,991,007

Net Pension Liability

2,050,327

OPEB Liability

1,069,338

Pollution Remediation AOC 4 Liability

1,456,000

Less Current Portion LT Debt
Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

-361,076
18,493,752
20,156,656

Equity
Retained Earnings
Net Income
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

24,064,698
674,102
24,738,800
44,895,456

Prepared by: Melanie Howard
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Capital Projects
September 2021
Budget to Actual
DEPARTMENT AND PROJECT

Department

Description

WFW
WFW
Airport
Airport
Airport
Airport
WFE - Marinas
WFW
WFW
WFW
Airport
WFE
WFE - Marinas
WFE - Marinas
WFW

P2 West 30% Design
P2 West Final PS&E Documents; Permitting & Mitigation
AIP 26 Apron Ph. 2
Backfill and Site Prep Behind Overbay
Backfill and Site Prep Behind Recology
FBO Upgrades
West Marina Dredging
AOC4
Fire suppression/system upgrades - Pier 2
Pier 2 East - Repairs based on ODOT reports
Hangar Maintenance
Central Waterfront Master Plan - Permitting and Design
EMB Dredging - Sampling & Analysis
Marina Piling Replacement (25)
Central Waterfront Master Plan - Permitting and Design

WFW

Fender Pile Replacement (40) Pier 1 West, Pier 2 East, Pier 2 West
Security Upgrades: Trident equipment; Pier 1 Generator; Pier 1
Booth
Waterfront Bathymetry
Industrial Park
Boatyard Feasibility Study
Heat Pump for new shop
Pier 1 Building - paint
Replace 200' storm water pipe
Seal Coat and Stripe Pier 1 Lot
Stormwater Upgrades / Maintenance
2021-22 IT Upgrades
Airport Master Plan
Overbay Building - windows, siding, exterior upgrades
Repair Fencing
Taxiway/Ramp Striping; Closed Runway Marking; 12,000 LF
(continuance?)
Vegetation Management
Marina Truck
Slip 1 Debris Removal
Refurbish Boatyard dually Forklift (new tower and hydraulic
components)
Seal Coat and Stripe Chinook Lot
Causeway Repairs
T-Dock Power
422 Gateway - siding, windows, interior upgrades
Rehab Tetrahedron
Chinook Building Repairs (roof and interior)
Sandblasting Building
Misc

WFW
WFW
Airport
Boatyard
Boatyard
WFW
WFW
WFW
WFW
Administration
Airport
Airport
Airport
Airport
Airport
WFE - Marinas
WFW
Boatyard
WFE
WFE - Marinas
WFE - Marinas
WFW
Airport
WFE
Boatyard

TOTALS

CAPITAL SPENDING & GRANTS - AS BUDGETED

Adopted Capital
Expenditure
40,000
250,000
2,388,852
30,000
25,000
15,000
482,500
300,000
20,000
50,000
50,000
12,500
29,650
95,000
12,500

Adopted Grant
Funding

Adopted POA
Expense

ACTUAL CAPITAL SPENDING & GRANTS

40,000
250,000
7,500
30,000
25,000
15,000
482,500
20,000
50,000
50,000
12,500
29,650
95,000
12,500

11,229
1,558,191
2,573
4,858
1,875
186
-

125,000

303

61,372
22,000
25,000
16,666
5,500
25,000
12,000
12,500
20,000
10,000
17,500
20,000
7,500

10,000
42,500
20,000
25,000
20,000
12,500
1,809,980
150,000
75,000
15,000
5,000
10,000

2,381,352

300,000

125,000

201,544
22,000
250,000
66,666
5,500
25,000
12,000
12,500
20,000
10,000
107,500
20,000
7,500

6,881,192

140,172
225,000
50,000

90,000

1,491,810

4,678,334

REMAINDER & PRIORITY

Budgetary
Grants Received Expenses through
Estimate of
through
9/30/2021
Remaining POA
Expenses through
9/30/2021
9/30/2021
NET OF GRANTS
Expense
1,417,695
-

Priority Level
(1-10)
9=Completed
10=Removed

11,229
140,496
2,573
4,858
1,875
186
-

28,771
250,000
27,427
20,143
15,000
482,500
20,000
50,000
50,000
12,500
27,775
94,814
12,500

1
1
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
3
3
3
3
3

-

303

124,697

3

630
1,385
36,589
26,834
6,550
-

-

630
1,385
36,589
26,834
6,550
-

61,372
22,000
24,370
15,281
5,500
12,000
20,000
10,000
17,500
13,450
7,500

3
3
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
5
5
5
5

10,000
42,500
20,000
25,000

30,600
-

-

30,600
-

10,000
11,900
20,000
25,000

5
5
5
5

20,000
12,500
318,170
150,000
75,000
15,000
5,000
10,000

2,743
268,655

372,202

2,743
(103,547)

20,000
12,500
315,427
150,000
75,000
15,000
5,000
10,000
-

6
6
6
6
6
7
7
8

2,202,858

1,953,199

1,789,897

163,302

2,094,928
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ESTIMATED FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF
COVID-19 AS OF SEPTEMBER 2021
Note: For the months of July through September 2021, long-term dockage revenues have exceeded budget
expectations for cancelled transient cruise ships; therefore, no lost revenue has been reported.

Cruise Ships and Riverboats
Estimated number of cruise ships and riverboats diverted: 82
Estimated lost revenue: $1,459,000

Hospitality (May through July 2020)
2019 Income from Percentage of Revenues: $77,451
2020 Income from Percentage of Revenues: $31,796
Estimated lost revenue: $45,656

Airport Fuel (May through July 2020)

March 2020 thru September 2021
COVID-Related Losses (Estimate)
TOTAL: $1,731,948

2019 Fuel sales: $242,334
2020 Fuel sales: $160,950

Lease Income
$45,656

Estimated lost revenue: $81,382

Marina Fuel (May through October 2020)
2019 Fuel sales: $450,151
2020 Fuel sales: $304,241
Estimated lost revenue: $145,910

Airport Fuel Income
$81,382
Marina Fuel
Income
$145,910

Dockage
Revenues
$1,459,000
84%
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Oct 31
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2

3

4

5

6

7PM Astoria City Council
Mtg

4PM Regular Session
6PM CB City Council
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5:30PM AWMP Advisory
Committee Public
Mtg
7PM Gearhart City
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10AM Col-Pac EDD Mtg
10AM NWOEA Mtg
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Comm College

8

9
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13

4PM Airport Advisory
Committee
7PM Seaside City
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6PM CB City Council
Work Mtg
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Veteran's Day (Port
office closed)
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7PM Astoria City Council
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25
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330PM CEDR Board Mtg
530PM Astoria Planning
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Dec 1
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28

Thanksgiving Holiday (Port office closed)

2

3
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7:30AM AWACC
Breakfast Mtg
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Talbot, Korvola & Warwick, LLP 14945 SW Sequoia Parkway, Suite 150, Portland, Oregon 97224
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Board of Commissioners
Port of Astoria
Astoria, Oregon

Attention: Frank Spence, President of Board of Commissioners
This letter is to inform the Board of Commissioners of Port of Astoria (the Port) about significant matters
related to the conduct of our audit as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, so that it can appropriately
discharge its oversight responsibility and we comply with our professional responsibilities.
Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Auditor’s Communication With Those Charged With
Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the auditor and those
charged with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the following summarizes our responsibilities
regarding the financial statement audit as well as observations arising from our audit that are significant and
relevant to your responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process.
Our Responsibilities With Regard to the Financial Statement Audit
Our responsibility under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States has been described to
you in our arrangement letter dated May 24, 2021. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve
management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities, which are also described in that
letter.
Overview of the Planned Scope and Timing of the Financial Statement Audit
We have issued a separate communication dated August 3, 2021 regarding the planned scope and timing of
our audit and identified significant risks.
Significant Accounting Practices, Including Policies, Estimates and Disclosures
Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, in certain circumstances,
management may select among alternative accounting practices. In our view, in such circumstances,
management has selected the preferable accounting practice.
Management has the ultimate responsibility for the appropriateness of the accounting policies used by the
Port. We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions or significant accounting policies in
controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon
management’s current judgment. The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and
experience about past and current events and certain assumptions about future events. You may wish to
monitor throughout the year the process used to determine and record these accounting estimates.

RSM US Alliance is a premier affiliation of independent accounting and consulting firms. RSM US Alliance provides its members
with access to resources of RSM US LLP. RSM US Alliance member firms are separate and independent businesses and legal
entities that are responsible for their own acts and omissions, and each are separate and independent from RSM US LLP. RSM US
LLP is the U.S. member firm of RSM International, a global network of independent audit, tax, and consulting firms. Visit
rsmus.com/aboutus for more information regarding RSM US LLP and RSM International. RSM US®, the RSM US Alliance logo and
the RSM US Alliance signatures are proprietary to RSM US LLP, while RSM™ is used under license by RSM US LLP.
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Board of Commissioners
Port of Astoria
Page 2
Significant Accounting Practices, Including Policies, Estimates and Disclosures (Continued)
The following describes the significant accounting estimates reflected in the Port’s June 30, 2021, financial
statements.
•

Allowance for doubtful accounts, as described in Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statements, is based
on management’s analysis of collectability and historical collection experience.

•

Depreciation of capital assets, as described in Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statements, is
recognized over the estimated useful lives of respective assets on a straight-line basis.

•

Net pension liability and related deferred outflow and inflow of resources, as described in Note 10 of
the Notes to Financial Statements, are based on an actuarial valuation prepared for the Oregon Public
Employees Retirement System (OPERS) using information provided by the Port to OPERS.

•

Total other post-employment benefits and related deferred outflow and inflow of resources, as
described in Note 11 of the Notes to Financial Statements, are actuarially determined based on certain
assumptions and information provided by the Port to the actuary.

•

Pollution remediation obligation, net, as described in Note 1 and Note 13 of the Notes to Financial
Statements, is based on a Record of Decision issued by the Oregon Department of Environmental
Quality and estimated remediation costs, offset by a reduction for estimated recoveries from other
potentially responsible parties.

Audit Adjustments and Uncorrected Misstatements
There were no audit adjustments made to the original trial balance presented to us to begin our audit.
We are not aware of any uncorrected misstatements other than misstatements that are clearly trivial.
Consultation with Other Accountants
We are not aware of any consultations management had with other accountants about accounting or auditing
matters.
Recently Issued Accounting Standards
•

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases
This Statement will be effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021 for all leases other than
short-term leases. Among other things, the Statement requires that government lessees:


Recognize the following: (a) a lease liability and (b) an intangible asset representing the lessee’s
right to use the leased asset; and



Report in its financial statements: (a) amortization expense for using the lease asset over the
shorter of the term of the lease or the useful life of the underlying asset, (b) interest expense on
the lease liability and (c) note disclosures about the lease.

Under this Statement, government lessors must:
 Recognize: (a) a lease receivable and (b) a deferred inflow of resources and continue to report the
leased asset in its financial statements; and


Report in its financial statements: (a) lease revenue, recognized over the term of the lease,
corresponding with the reduction of the deferred inflow, (b) interest income on the receivable;
and (c) note disclosures about the lease.
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Board of Commissioners
Port of Astoria
Page 3
Recently Issued Accounting Standards (Continued)
•

GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements
This Statement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022. The Statement
provides guidance to improve accounting and financial reporting for public-private and public-public
partnership arrangements (commonly referred to as P3s) and availability payment arrangements (APAs).
It has guidance for P3 arrangements, including those that are outside of the scope of the GASB’s existing
literature for those transactions, namely Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service
Concession Arrangements, and Statement No. 87, Leases. The Statement also makes certain improvements
to the guidance previously included in Statement 60 and provides accounting and financial reporting
guidance for APAs.

•

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements
This Statement will be effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. The Statement provides
accounting and financial reporting guidance for subscription-based information technology
arrangements (SBITAs). It is based on the standards established in Statement 87, Leases.

Management Representations
Attached is a copy of the management representation letter.
Closing
We will be pleased to respond to any questions you have about the foregoing. We appreciate the opportunity
to continue to be of service to the Port.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners and is not intended
to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Portland, Oregon
October 25, 2021
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Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules for
Port of Astoria, Oregon
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
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Talbot, Korvola & Warwick, LLP 14945 SW Sequoia Parkway, Suite 150, Portland, Oregon 97224
P 503.274.2849 F 503.274.2853 www.tkw.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Commissioners
Port of Astoria
Astoria, Oregon
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Port of Astoria, Oregon (the Port), as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Port’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents.
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
OPINIONS
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Port as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

RSM US Alliance is a premier affiliation of independent accounting and consulting firms. RSM US Alliance provides its members
with access to resources of RSM US LLP. RSM US Alliance member firms are separate and independent businesses and legal
entities that are responsible for their own acts and omissions, and each are separate and independent from RSM US LLP. RSM US
LLP is the U.S. member firm of RSM International, a global network of independent audit, tax, and consulting firms. Visit
rsmus.com/aboutus for more information regarding RSM US LLP and RSM International. RSM US®, the RSM US Alliance logo and
the RSM US Alliance signatures are proprietary to RSM US LLP, while RSM™ is used under license by RSM US LLP.

-- 21 --

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
Board of Commissioners
Port of Astoria
OTHER MATTERS
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary
information, such as Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Pension Contributions, Schedule of
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability(Asset), and Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related
Ratios, as listed in the Table of Contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Supplementary Information and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Port’s basic financial statements. The schedules, as listed in the Table of Contents as Supplementary
Information, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
Supplementary Information and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Supplementary
Information and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Information
The Introductory Section, as listed in the Table of Contents, has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.
REPORTS ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 25, 2021 on our
consideration of the Port’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Port’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
Board of Commissioners
Port of Astoria
REPORTS ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS (Continued)
Other Reporting Required by Oregon Minimum Standards
In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have also issued our report
dated October 25, 2021, on our consideration of the Port’s compliance with certain provisions of laws and
regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on compliance.
TALBOT, KORVOLA & WARWICK, LLP

Portland, Oregon
October 25, 2021
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PORT OF ASTORIA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides a discussion and analysis of the operating results, financial
position and future prospects of the Port of Astoria “the Port”, a municipal government organized by ORS 777. It should be
read in conjunction with the financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, including all
accompanying notes to the financial statements.
Mission Statement

“The Port of Astoria seeks to generate economic growth and prosperity, in a safe and environmentally responsible manner, for
its citizens through the creation of family wage jobs and prudent management of its assets”.
Overall Performance and Goals
The Port’s primary goals are as follows:
•
•
•

To improve and strengthen the Port’s transportation infrastructure in order to meet current and future demands
on a competitive basis.
To fully exploit the business and employment potential of the Port’s industrial and commercial real estate in
partnership with community development goals.
To expand infrastructure in support of traditional natural resource industries and related trades.

Financial Highlights

The Port’s overall net position decreased during fiscal year 2021 by $665,396, which is a decrease from the prior year in
which the Port had a net increase of $3,329,077. The Port had an operating loss in the current year of $2,545,090, a
significant decrease from the operating loss in the prior year of $798,985.

The Port had a positive net position of $24,064,703 as of June 30, 2021, a decrease from $24,730,099 as of June 30, 2020.
This decrease in net position can be partially attributed to decreased revenues as a result of the cancelled cruise ship season,
decreased grant and capital activity, and increased expense related to pollution remediation and depreciation. The net
position for the net investment in capital assets increased in 2021 by $509,273 for a total of $26,739,461, while the
unrestricted net position remained negative at ($2,674,758) as of June 30, 2021, a change from ($1,500,089) as of June 30,
2020.
Discussion of Basic Financial Statements - The basic financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis, similar to a
private business, whereby revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred, regardless
of when cash is received or paid. The basic financial statements consist of a statement of net position which includes the
Port’s assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities, deferred inflow of resources, and net position at year end; a
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position; and a statement of cash flows, which presents the sources and
uses of cash for the year. The financial statements also include notes that further explain some of the information in the
financial statements and provide more detailed data. Following the financial statements is a section of supplementary
information, nearly all of which is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

4
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PORT OF ASTORIA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Port is operated as a unitary enterprise similar to a commercial or business entity organized for profit, and includes
accounting of operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private-sector business where the intent of
the governing body is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed
or recovered primarily through service charges. Revenue is generated primarily through land and building rents, dock user
fees, fueling fees, airport service charges, and timber revenues.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the Port’s assets and deferred outflow of resources, less liabilities
and deferred inflow of resources with the difference between them reported as net position. The net position total reported
in the statement of net position serves as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Port is improving or
declining over time. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information on the operating
and non-operating revenues and expenses of the Port. In addition, it provides information on how well the Port is
recovering its costs and generating profits available to reinvest in Port operations.
Condensed Statement of Net Position

Assets
Current assets
Other assets
Capital assets

$

Total assets

$

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Total deferred
inflows

$

2019

3,577,484
6,292,121
31,363,998
41,233,603
599,075
-

821,117

700,112

599,075

1,937,151
18,663,120

2,002,166
18,024,917

2,050,256
18,177,210

78,544
137,945

147,527
157,651

204,190
-

20,027,083

216,489

$

4,079,262
6,284,621
33,998,365
589,506
110,606

20,570,266

Deferred pension inflows
Deferred OPEB inflows

June 30,
2020

44,362,248

724,337
96,780

Total deferred
outflows

Total net position

3,344,359
6,277,121
34,408,861
44,030,341

Deferred pension outflows
Deferred OPEB outflows

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

2021

26,739,461
(2,674,758)

24,064,703

20,227,466

305,178

$

26,230,188
(1,500,089)

24,730,099

204,190

$

23,212,941
(1,811,919)

21,401,022
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PORT OF ASTORIA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

2021
Operating revenues
Operating expenses

$

Loss from operations

Net loss before capital grants
Change in net position

928,832
(139,533)

1,064,634
(531,079)

1,090,395

3,594,507

24,730,099

21,401,022

24,064,703

$

926,669
(585,524)
(645,108)
592,184

3,329,077

$

24,730,099

8,015,338
(9,001,591)
(986,253)

(265,430)

(665,396)

$

7,282,437
(8,081,422)

2019

(798,985)

(1,755,791)

Capital grants

Net position, end of the year

$

(2,545,090)

Non-operating revenues
Non-operating expenses

Net position, beginning of year

6,358,547
(8,903,637)

Year Ended June 30,
2020

(52,924)

$

21,453,946

21,401,022

Analysis of the Overall Financial Position and Results of Operations
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, there was decreased capital activity from the prior year. Acquisition and
construction of capital assets was $2,792,897 for the fiscal year 2021, compared to $4,537,444 in the fiscal year 2020. See
Note 4 for more information on capital assets.

Operating revenues decreased by $923,890, which represents a 12.7% decrease from the prior year. The decrease in
revenues were driven in part by decreased re-billed expense revenue and pier revenue; a result of cancelled cruise ship
traffic due to the Covid-19 pandemic; and a decrease in lease and rental income from a deferment agreement that the Port
entered into with Bornstein Seafoods. See Note 6, Leases, for more information.
In the prior year, operating revenues decreased by $732,901, which represents a 9.1% decrease from fiscal year 2019. The
decreased revenues were driven in part by decreased re-billed expense revenue, pier revenue, and fuel sales as a result of
the loss of logging income to the Port and the Covid-19 pandemic.

Operating expenses increased by $822,215 which represents a 10% increase from fiscal year 2020. This increase was
primarily caused by a combination of increased pollution remediation and depreciation expense. In the prior year,
operating expenses decreased by $920,169 which represents a 10.2% decrease from fiscal year 2019, as result of reduced
general operating expense, professional service fees, longshore labor costs, and fuel costs.
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PORT OF ASTORIA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Analysis of the Overall Financial Position and Results of Operations (Continued)
Non-operating revenues, consisting primarily of property taxes, timber receipts, interest income, and grants, decreased by
$135,802 or 12.8% from fiscal year 2020. The decrease was primarily a result of a loss on disposal of assets in the amount
of $183,095, compared to a gain on disposal of assets in the prior year of $14,278. In fiscal year 2020, non-operating
revenues increased $137,965 or 14.9% from fiscal year 2019, primarily as a result of non-capital Coronavirus Relief Fund
grants from the Federal CARES Act, in addition to smaller increases to property tax revenues, interest income, and timber
receipts.

Non-operating expenses decreased in fiscal year 2021 by $391,546, or 73.7%, as a result of a loan deferment agreement
with Business Oregon that allowed the Port to suspend loan payments and extend debt agreements by one year. In fiscal
year 2020, non-operating expenses decreased by $54,445, or 9.3%, primarily due to an ongoing decrease in interest
expense caused by the normal pay down of outstanding debt.
The current ratio (the ratio of current assets available to pay current liabilities) decreased from the prior year from 2.04 to
1.73. This is mostly attributable to a decrease in grants receivable of $800,768. In the prior year, the current ratio increased
from 1.74 to 2.04. This was mostly attributable to an increase in grants receivables of $1,163,483.
Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - The Port’s investment in capital assets for its activities, as of June 30, 2021, was $34,408,861 and for June
30, 2020, was $33,998,365, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings,
building improvements, infrastructure, and machinery and equipment. The total increase in capital assets for the current
fiscal year was $410,496 or 1% based on June 30, 2020 capital asset balances. The increase was a result of additions to
construction in progress of approximately $877,774, with a net decrease in depreciable assets of $467,278. In fiscal year
2020, capital asset additions were $2,634,367, while depreciation was $1,903,077. Additional information about the Port’s
capital assets is discussed in Note 4 of the financial statements.

Long-Term Obligations - The Port had long-term obligations totaling $18,994,195, an increase of $629,825 from the prior
year; the two main contributing factors were an increase to the net pension liability of $488,879 and an increase to pollution
liability of $214,298. The Port had long-term obligations totaling $18,364,370 as of June 30, 2020, a decrease of $945,506
from the prior year, primarily the result of scheduled note payable debt payments as well as declines in the pollution
remediation obligation of $370,159. Additional information regarding the Port’s long-term obligations is discussed in Note
7 of the financial statements.
Description of Currently Known Facts, Decisions, or Conditions

With the exception of the capital projects included in the current year budget, the Port has no projects planned that would
materially affect current revenues. Those projects include airport apron improvements, West Marina dredging, piling
replacements, East Basin causeway repairs, planning for Pier 2 West rehabilitation, and a variety of other repairs and
improvements.
Additionally, the Port faces some uncertainty with the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic and the effects on cruise ship travel. The
Port had anticipated the return of cruise ship traffic in 2021, and the impact on lost revenue potential was significant. It is
unclear what the short-term and long-term effects of the pandemic will be on the cruise ship industry, making it difficult
for the Port to anticipate future revenues.
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Port of Astoria’s finances for all those with an interest
in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report should be directed to the
Accounting and Business Services Manager, Port of Astoria, 422 Gateway Avenue, Suite 100, Astoria, Oregon, 97103.
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PORT OF ASTORIA
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivables, net
Property and other county taxes receivable
Current maturities, long-term receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Grants receivable
Total current assets

$

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Land and non-depreciable capital assets
Capital assets, net
Long-term receivables, less current maturities
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS:
Deferred pension outflows
Deferred OPEB outflows

Total deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows

2021

June 30,

1,670,233
944,520
33,311
7,500
63,977
210,081
414,737
3,344,359

6,981,967
27,016,398
6,284,621
40,282,986
44,362,248

724,337
96,780

589,506
110,606

821,117

44,851,458

$

45,062,360

$

1,362,623
29,540
80,174
103,734
361,075
1,937,151

$

1,470,207
29,208
83,580
79,718
339,453
2,002,166

DEFERRED INFLOWS:
Deferred pension inflows
Deferred OPEB inflows

18,633,120
20,570,266

18,024,917
20,027,083

216,489

305,178

78,544
137,945

Total deferred inflows of resources

See accompanying notes.

700,112

$

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term obligations, net of current portion
Total liabilities

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position

1,828,714
710,990
44,654
7,500
23,716
248,183
1,215,505
4,079,262

3,865,944
30,542,917
6,277,121
40,685,982
44,030,341

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Long-term obligations, current portion
Total current liabilities

$

2020

$

26,739,461
(2,674,758)
24,064,703
44,851,458

147,527
157,651

$

26,230,188
(1,500,089)
24,730,099
45,062,360
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PORT OF ASTORIA
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

OPERATING REVENUES:
Lease and rental operations
Fuel sales
Re-billed expenses
Pier revenue
Marina revenue
Finance charges
Other income
Total operating revenues

$

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Materials and services
Personnel services
Depreciation
Bad debt
Pollution remediation
Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Net loss before capital grants

$

Changes in net position

$

2,793,806
848,304
1,486,735
996,881
984,100
172,611
7,282,437
3,493,409
2,950,816
1,903,077
104,279
(370,159)
8,081,422

822,182
1,465
89,416
198,864
(183,095)
(139,533)
789,299

768,312
13,536
69,697
198,811
14,278
(531,079)
533,555

1,090,395

3,594,507

24,730,099

21,401,022

(798,985)

(265,430)

(665,396)

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

2020

3,465,740
2,886,418
2,187,436
149,745
214,298
8,903,637

(1,755,791)

CAPITAL GRANTS

See accompanying notes.

1,975,701
922,163
1,267,142
992,169
1,047,593
10,675
143,104
6,358,547

(2,545,090)

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE):
Property taxes
Interest income
Grants
Timber receipts
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Interest expense
Total non-operating income (expense)

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

2021

24,064,703

3,329,077

$

24,730,099
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PORT OF ASTORIA
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments for personnel services
Payment to suppliers

$

Net cash provided by operating activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments received on capital grant agreements
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal payment on long term debt
Payment to refund loan
Loan proceeds
Interest paid on capital debt
Proceeds on sale of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

766,501
198,811
69,697

1,121,805

1,035,009

1,891,163
(2,792,897)
(147,176)
(1,296,652)
1,345,000
(142,939)
11,870

2,431,024
(4,537,444)
(1,011,744)
142,640
(578,688)
14,278

(1,131,631)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on investment

(3,539,934)

1,465

Net cash provided by investing activities

13,536

1,465

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

13,536

(158,481)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING

$

7,472,006
(2,712,680)
(2,684,471)
2,074,855

833,525
198,864
89,416

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

See accompanying notes.

5,985,017
(2,557,220)
(3,577,917)
(150,120)

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from property taxes
Cash received from timber tax revenue
Payments received on non-capital grant agreements

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,
2021
2020

1,828,714

1,670,233

(416,534)
$

2,245,248

1,828,714
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PORT OF ASTORIA
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss
Adjustments
Depreciation
Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivables, net
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Long-term receivables, less current maturities
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Tenant rent payable
Pollution remediation obligation
OPEB liability and related deferrals
Net pension liability and related deferrals
Unearned revenue
Clatsop County assessment
Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes.

2021

$

(2,545,090)
2,187,436

2020

$

(233,530)
(40,261)
38,102
7,500

$

(107,584)
18,598
(21,771)
214,298
25,535
285,065
24,016
(2,434)

(150,120)

(798,985)

1,903,077

(258,917)
15,505
4,004
493,890

$

792,103
26,788
51,939
(370,159)
32,490
178,858
6,936
(2,674)

2,074,855
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PORT OF ASTORIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization and operation - The Port of Astoria (Port) is an Oregon Municipal corporation formed under ORS 777. It was
formed by special election in 1910. The Port operations include dockage, marina, and boat repair facilities. The Port is
responsible for operating the airport and facilities surrounding the airport. The Port owns property that it leases to area
businesses and individuals.
The financial statements of the Port have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting
body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. The GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with the subsequent GASB pronouncements
(Standards and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The more significant of these accounting policies
are described below.

Reporting entity - In evaluating how to define the government, for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered the Port’s financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of the Port, organizations for which
the Port is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the Port is not accountable, but for which the nature
and significance of their relationship with the Port are such that the exclusion would cause the Port’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the
Port are financially accountable. In addition, component units can be other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the Port are such that the exclusion would cause the Port’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. Based on these criteria, the Port has no component units.
Basis of accounting - The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. The Port maintains three
individual funds for state legal compliance that are combined and reported as a unitary enterprise similar to a commercial
entity organized for profit for financial reporting. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations: (a) that are financed
and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs
of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
fees; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other
purposes.

The Port distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services in connection with the Port’s ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the Port include lease income from rental of Port property, dockage revenue, fuel sales, marina and boatyard fees, and
tenant utility re-bills. Operating expenses include the cost of providing the services mentioned above, as well as
administrative expenses. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.
Use of resources - When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Port’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Cash and cash equivalents - For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Port considers cash and short-term
investments with maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Port maintains merged bank accounts for
its funds in a central pool of demand deposit bank accounts.

Accounts receivable - Accounts receivable consist of rents due from tenants within the industrial parks, marinas, and the
airport and charges due from ships using port services. The amounts are unsecured. These accounts are shown net of an
allowance for doubtful accounts.

The Port provides an allowance for receivables if it believes it may not collect in full. It evaluates the collectability of its
accounts based on a combination of factors. The Port’s estimates of the recoverability of amounts due may change in the
near term. The allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $403,702 and $488,435, respectively.
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PORT OF ASTORIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Inventory - Inventory consists of fuel inventories held for resale at the marina and airport. Inventory is valued at the lower
of cost or market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of inventory are recorded as expenses when used
(consumption method).
Property taxes - The State of Oregon constitution and state statutes provide for several types of tax levies, all of which
require voter approval before being levied. Included among such authorized levies are a permanent tax rate, which can
result in a different levy amount each year as assessed valuations change, bonded debt levies which can be levied each year
the related general obligation bonds mature, and local option levies for a voter-approved number of years.

The Port of Astoria levies a permanent tax rate property tax levy.

By July 15 of each year, the Port certifies its property tax levy to Clatsop County, Oregon. Clatsop County makes all
assessments of property value and levies, collects, and distributes property taxes for all taxing districts within its
boundaries. Assessments of property values are as of July 1 of each year, and the taxes levied are a lien on the properties as
of July 1 of the year levied.

Taxes are payable in three installments on November 15, February 15, and May 15 following the levy date and become
delinquent May 15. The County pools tax collections and makes distributions to taxing districts according to their pro-rata
share of the total levy each fiscal year which collections are received.
Property tax revenue is recognized on the accrual basis of accounting. Property taxes levied during the current year are
recorded as revenue, and any amounts uncollected at year-end are recorded as a current asset.

Fair value - The Port categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. Investments in money markets are valued using
quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs).
Capital assets - Purchased or constructed capital assets, including property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure
(roadways, piers, drainage systems, etc.), are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. The Port defines capital assets
as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated life in excess of one year.

Additions or improvements that significantly extend the useful life of an asset, or that significantly increase the capacity of
an asset are capitalized. Donated assets are recorded at their acquisition value at the date of donation. Maintenance and
repairs of a routine nature are charged to expenses as incurred and are not capitalized.
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:
Land improvements

10 to 50 years

Equipment and vehicles

5 to 40 years

Buildings and structures
Furniture and fixtures

10 to 50 years
3 to 20 years
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PORT OF ASTORIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Unearned tenant improvements - On occasion, Port tenants perform capital improvements to Port property as a condition
of the lease rental agreement. In exchange for these improvements, the Port has granted lease rental credits to cover all or
a portion of the capital improvement. The Port has recorded capital assets for these improvements and tenant rent payable
for the amount due to tenants through the rental credits. The payable is amortized over the life of the lease.

Unused compensated absences - It is the Port’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and
sick pay benefits. Accumulated vacation leave and sick pay is recorded as an expense and liability when earned by each
employee.

Pollution remediation obligation - The Port records future pollution remediation costs that meet measurement criteria
outlined in GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations. Under this
accounting standard, when the Port determines a pollution remediation obligation exists and management is able to make
a reasonable and supportable estimation of expected outlays, a long-term liability, net of estimated recoveries from other
potentially responsible parties, is recorded. Pollution remediation costs are reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position as an operating expense (or as revenues for recoveries received after all remediation activities
have been completed).

Pensions - The net pension liability, deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflow of resources related to pensions,
and pension expense have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by OPERS.
Other post-employment benefits (“OPEB”) obligations - The total OPEB obligation is recognized as a liability and the
related deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflow of resources related to OPEB and OPEB expense have been
actuarially determined.
Deferred inflow and outflow of resources - In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate
section for deferred outflow of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflow of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred inflow of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred inflow of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to
a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then.
Net position - The Port’s net position is classified as follows:
•

•

Net Investment in capital assets. This represents the Port’s total investment in capital assets, net of outstanding
debt obligations related to those capital assets. Debt proceeds that have been received for capital assets but not
yet expended are not included within this component of net position.
Unrestricted. Resources not included in other classifications are unrestricted.
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PORT OF ASTORIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition - The Port recognizes revenue from dockage, fuel sales, marina and boatyard fees, and tenant utility
re-bills as the services are provided. The Port recognizes property management income over the lease period. Any assets,
liabilities, expenses and revenues created as a result of non-exchange transactions are recognized when all the significant
eligibility requirements have been met. A non-exchange transaction occurs when a government receives (or gives) value
without directly giving (or receiving) equal value in return.
Use of estimates - Preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These assumptions and estimates
affect the amounts and disclosures in the accompanying financial statements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgets and budgetary accounting - The Port is required by Oregon State Law to adopt an annual appropriated budget.
The budgetary fiscal period coincides with the annual reporting period (July 1 through June 30). Appropriated budgets are
adopted by the executive body and, accordingly, used as a management control device for all funds.
The Port prepared its budget using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which is an acceptable basis of accounting. The
Port includes capital outlay and debt services as expenditures for budgetary purposes.

Original appropriations may be increased or decreased, through resolutions, by transferring amounts between
appropriations in the same fund or by transferring from an appropriation in the General Fund to an appropriation in
another fund, or they may be increased through the adoption of a supplemental budget. By state law, budget appropriations
lapse at year-end.

The Port adopts its budget by the following object classifications within each fund: personnel services, material and
services, capital outlay, debt service, transfers to other funds, and contingency.
The Port’s actual expenditures were within budgeted amounts for the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.
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PORT OF ASTORIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Total cash and cash equivalents, as presented in the statements of net position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Cash on hand
Bank deposits
Money market accounts
Total cash and cash equivalents

$
$

2021

595
1,344,248
325,390
1,670,233

$
$

2020

595
944,724
883,395
1,828,714

The Port is restricted by State of Oregon statutes in the types of investments in which it may invest. Authorized investments
include general obligations of the United States Government and its agencies, certain bonded obligations of municipalities,
certain certificates of deposits and savings accounts, and other demand deposit accounts.
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of exposure to fair value losses resulting from rising interest rates. The Port does not have a
formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates. However, the Port has minimal interest rate risks because all of its deposits are held in
demand accounts with banks.
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of a counterparty, the Port would not be able to recover the
value of its deposits and investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Financial
instruments that potentially subject the Port to custodial risk consist primarily of bank demand deposits. In order to
minimize this risk, state statutes require banks holding public funds become members of the Public Funds Collateralization
Program (PFCP), a multiple financial institution collateral pool created by the Office of the State Treasurer. To qualify,
participating banks must pledge collateral against any public fund deposits in excess of deposit insurance. The amount of
collateral is set by the PFCP between 10% and 110% of each bank’s public fund deposits based on their net worth and level
of capitalization. Although the PFCP creates a shared liability structure for participating bank depositories, it does not
guarantee that all funds are 100% protected.
As required by ORS, deposits in excess of federal depository insurance were held at qualified depositories for public funds.
All qualified depositories for public funds are included in the multiple financial institution collateral pool that is maintained
by and in the name of the office of the State Treasurer. The Port had bank balances of $1,431,855 and $2,257,954 at June
30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, that exceeded FDIC insurance, however this risk is mitigated by coverage through the
PFCP.
Concentration of Credit Risk

The Port does not have a policy to limit the amount that may be invested in any one issuer. At June 30, 2021 and 2020,
100% of its deposits were held in multiple deposit and money market accounts, with one bank.
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PORT OF ASTORIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity and balances consist of the following for the year ended June 30, 2021:
Ending
Balance
6/30/20

Capital assets, non-depreciable:
Land

Construction in Progress
Total capital assets, nondepreciable

$

4,397,130

$

6,981,967

Capital assets, depreciable:
Land Improvements

Buildings & Structures
Intangibles

Dredge & Marine Equipment

6,532

-

Computer & Equipment

-

-

619,488

1,690

-

33,998,365

$

11,734,187
6,531

149,201

7,864

958,101

-

979,592

-

502,768

7,190

-

628,368

-

(108,940)

3,993,797

(467,278)

-

3,993,797

108,940

(194,965)

14,104,235

39,592

(7,602)

$

1,281,107

42,666,027

(330,299)

1,720,158

605,461

2,584,837

3,865,944

60,280

-

(2,187,436)

27,016,398

$

-

-

$

(3,993,797)

-

-

(3,993,797)

4,209,170

(4,816)

-

-

-

316,367

(96,522)

(39,316,162)

Net depreciable capital assets

(194,965)

$

(194,965)

-

66,332,560

Less: accumulated depreciation

-

52,955

208,564

Total capital assets, depreciable

Transfers

993,804
510,370

Furniture & Fixtures

$

-

979,592

Vehicles & Boats

1,072,739

1,349,146

109,609

Machinery & Equipment

-

37,107,711

12,064,486

Leasehold Improvements

Deletions

1,072,739

13,732,404

Airport Property

Net capital assets

2,584,837

Additions

Ending
Balance
6/30/21

208,564

71,937,575

-

$

-

(41,394,658)

30,542,917

$

34,408,861

Construction in progress consists primarily of pier restoration and airport improvements. Capital projects are financed by
a combination of debt, grants and internal resources.
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PORT OF ASTORIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Capital asset activity and balances consist of the following for the year ended June 30, 2020:
Ending
Balance
6/30/19

Capital assets, non-depreciable:
Land

Construction in Progress
Total capital assets, nondepreciable
Capital assets, depreciable:
Land Improvements

Buildings & Structures
Airport Property

Leasehold Improvements
Intangibles

$

2,584,837

1,999,388
4,584,225

Additions

$

Deletions

-

4,079,814
4,079,814

(249,177)

6,532

-

-

10,637,239

(1,903,077)

$ 31,363,998

$ 2,634,367

Net capital assets

26,779,773

109,609

(2,599)

-

(37,735,040)

Net depreciable capital assets

65,986

63,010

9,697

(13,492)

(5,900)

457,630

(321,955)

1,682,072

(1,445,447)

-

1,682,072

-

-

-

321,955

$

-

12,064,486

6,532

993,804

-

-

-

37,107,711

13,732,404

-

-

4,397,130

103,928

(36,300)

142,340

Less: accumulated depreciation

6,981,967

-

516,270
208,564

(1,682,072)

(1,682,072)

1,443,681

25,832

64,514,813

$ 2,584,837

(17,359)

17,791

983,387

-

11,367

(3,028)

925

479,747

Total capital assets, depreciable

-

$

-

161,917

Furniture & Fixtures

Computer & Equipment

-

116,919

13,469,587

967,094

Vehicles & Boats

Transfers

37,228,602

Machinery & Equipment

Dredge & Marine Equipment

$

Ending
Balance
6/30/20

$

979,592
510,370

619,488

208,564

66,332,560

-

(39,316,162)

-

$ 33,998,365

27,016,398
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PORT OF ASTORIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES
Long-term receivables at June 30, 2021 consists of the following:
Net investment in direct financing lease (Note 6)
Bornstein land lease

$

Total long-term receivables

$

Long-term receivables at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:
Net investment in direct financing lease (Note 6)
Bornstein land lease

$

Total long-term receivables

$

Current

7,500
7,500

Current

7,500
7,500

Long-term

$
$

6,208,996
68,125

6,277,121

Long-term

$
$

6,208,996
75,625

6,284,621

NOTE 6 - LEASES
Operating leases - The Port leases several facilities to various individuals and businesses. These facilities include airport
hangar space, marina slips, buildings, parcels of land, and pier and mooring space, among others. The cost and carrying
amounts for these assets are included in the Port’s Capital Assets (Note 4). Rent agreements vary from month-to-month to
20 years.
The minimum non-cancelable future lease payments to be received as of June 30, 2021, were as follows:

Year Ended
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

Total

$

$

1,548,373
2,258,644
2,096,677
1,994,893
1,836,589
7,502,032

17,237,208

Direct financing lease - The Port entered into a commercial lease agreement in 2005 to construct and lease a seafood
processing facility. Financing for construction of the facility was provided by the Oregon Business Development Department
(State Financing). The rent commencement date under the lease agreement was July 1, 2006.
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PORT OF ASTORIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 6 - LEASES (Continued)
The minimum rental payments under the agreement call for monthly installments equal to the annual debt service on the
state financing. In February 2010, the Port elected to use proceeds from a qualifying energy efficiency project performed at
the facility to offset the final lease payment at the end of the state financing. In June of 2020, the Port arranged for a oneyear deferment of rent for the period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. In June of 2021, the Port arranged for an
additional one-year deferment of rent for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.
The following lists the components of the net investment in the Port’s direct financing lease as of June 30, 2021 and 2020:
Minimum lease payments receivable

$

Less unearned income

Less applicable credits

2021

7,734,831

(1,417,075)

$

(108,760)

Net investment in direct financing lease
Long-term portion

$

-

6,208,996

7,734,831

(1,417,075)
(108,760)

6,208,996

Less current maturities

2020

6,208,996
$

-

6,208,996

As of June 30, 2021 minimum lease payments for the next five years are as follows:

Year Ended
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

Total minimum
payments required

$

533,789
552,718
572,318
592,614
3,957,557

$

6,208,996

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Notes payable - The Port has 11 loans with the Oregon Business Development Department (OBDD) and the Special Public
Works Fund (SPWF) of the State of Oregon. The loans were obtained to make various improvements to the Port’s marine
and airport facilities. Interest rates and maturity dates vary from 2.49% to 7.0% and 3 to 15 years. The total amount
outstanding remained the same in fiscal years 2021 and 2020, at $10,867,312. In May of 2020, Oregon Business
Development agreed to a one-year loan deferment, suspending payments for the period of May 2020 through April of 2021.
The deferment was extended in June of 2021, for the total period of May 2020 through April of 2022. Interest accrual will
be stopped for that period, and lease terms are extended one additional year. The current portion of these outstanding
notes is $11,031. Port real property is pledged as security.
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
A note payable to Kitsap Bank with an original face value of $1,345,000 for the refinancing of the Pier 1 office building. This
note was procured in 2021 and was used to pay off the existing loan through Clatsop Community Bank. It is structured as a
Full Faith and Credit Refunding Financing Agreement and Note, with no collateral pledged. The note has an average coupon
rate of 2.76%. Principal payments are due in annual installments of varying amounts, with interest payment due in semiannual installments of varying amounts. The principal and interest payments for fiscal year 2022 will be $85,000 and
$32,742, respectively.
A note payable to the Clatsop Community Bank with an original face value of $1,700,000 for the purchase of Pier 1 office
building. This note was fully refunded and closed with the proceeds from the Kitsap Bank note (see above). The note was
collateralized by the Pier 1 office building. The interest and principal payments were due in monthly installments of
$12,335. There was a required balloon payment of $1,049,041 due at maturity on June 14, 2025. The note had a variable
interest rate set at prime rate, plus 2.5%.

In October 2016, the Port entered into a debt agreement of $1,750,000 with Key Bank to fund the construction of a
stormwater treatment project on Pier 3. The note has a fixed interest rate set at 2.99% for 10 years, with semi-annual
interest and principal payments of $50,633. A mandatory prepayment of the balance is scheduled for the end of the 10 year
period, but may be extended with 2 additional 5-year reset dates. The Bonds are secured by the full faith and credit of the
Port.
A note payable to the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) with an original face value of $300,000 for pier
improvements. The principal payments are due in annual installments of $15,000 and matures on January 1, 2029. There
is no interest component on the note.
A note payable to KS State Bank with an original face value of $47,990 for LED lighting improvements on Port property. The
interest and principal payments are due in monthly installments of $778 and carries an imputed interest rate of 5.23%. The
note matures on April 25, 2022.

A note payable to KS State Bank with an original face value of $142,340 for additional LED lighting improvements on Port
property. The interest and principal payments are due in monthly installments of $2,252 and carries an imputed interest
rate of 4.42%. The note matures on March 25, 2026.
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Following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021:

Notes payable

Tenant rent payables

Compensated absences:
Accrued vacation
Accrued sick

Ending
Balance
6/30/20

Additions

Reductions

Ending
Balance
6/30/21

Due Within
One Year

$ 14,087,388

$ 1,345,000

$ 1,443,828

$ 13,988,560

117,233

19,937

-

137,170

137,170

1,669

288,153

137,170

161,139

21,771

139,368

24,605

269,887

19,937

1,669

(Note 12)

1,241,702

806,000

591,702

1,456,000

-

liability (Note 10)

1,037,923

31,415

-

1,069,338

-

-

2,434

2,449

2,449

Pollution remediation obligation, net

Total other postemployment benefits
Net pension liability (Note 9)
Assessment obligations:

Clatsop County assessment

Total long-term obligations

1,561,448
4,883

$ 18,364,370

488,879

$ 2,291,913

-

$ 1,513,088

150,985

196,851

-

Total compensated absences

152,654

-

$

-

2,050,327

$ 18,994,195

-

$

22

361,075
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Following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020:

Notes payable

Tenant rent payables

Compensated absences:
Accrued vacation
Accrued sick

Ending
Balance
6/30/19

$ 14,956,492
109,200

Additions

$

142,640
68,040

88,500

28,733

Due Within
One Year

$ 1,011,744

$ 14,087,388

-

117,233

117,233

16,101

$ 173,554

161,139

21,771

236,792

4,362

33,095

-

-

269,887

141,713

(Note 12)

1,611,861

-

370,159

1,241,702

-

liability (Note 10)

1,052,478
1,335,496

85,504

225,952

100,059

1,037,923

-

7,557

-

2,674

4,883

2,415

Total compensated absences

Pollution remediation obligation, net

Total other postemployment benefits
Net pension liability (Note 9)
Assessment obligations:

Clatsop County assessment

Total long-term obligations

148,292

Reductions

Ending
Balance
6/30/20

$ 19,309,876

$

555,231

-

$ 1,500,737

152,654

24,480

1,561,448

$ 18,364,370

-

$

23

339,453
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows:
Fiscal Year

2022
2023

Bornstein Buildings Cons't

$

Principal

2026

592,614

2023
2024
2026

2022
2023

$

6,656

190,125

-

Interest

$

$

21,312

12,693

23,097

10,909

125,019

11,002

$

-

11,330

$

2037-41

-

94,124

3,060

12,741

$

$

2016 LED Lighting Project

$

-

$

-

838

-

$

$

-

55,523

57,195

$

175,379

Principal

$

85,000

85,000

-

$ 1,345,000

44,071

$

22,707

23,763

62,521

38,745

7,668

40,574

-

49,888

746

$

$

53,467
Interest

32,742

31,833
30,796

29,512

27,974

106,894
$

34,398

294,149

$

Interest

4,313

3,257
2,152
996

66

-

-

-

46,140

532,289

2,770

26,024

164,316

109,604

$

6,419

21,246

2020 LED Lighting Project

Principal

24,868

1,543,678

7,067

90,000

42,349

460,194

7,687

85,000

435,000

-

8,278

85,000

480,000

396,729

$

$

-

45,744

Interest

82,779

58,918

342,017

$

Pier 1 Building

-

188

-

38,831

-

84,228

Airport waterline/fuel tank

-

Interest

60,693

$

13,118

-

$

402,834

18,994

13,738

-

Key Government Finance

Principal

$

120,000

-

12,527

-

15,000
-

$

-

45,000

-

14,386

-

15,000

-

188

$

12,329

Principal

-

Interest

59,645

-

9,766

17,725

15,038

186,925
$

-

20,142

54,185

1,691

$

$

Interest

53,748

3,285

15,000

-

-

7,591

15,000

15,000

-

-

$

$

-

-

-

277

-

-

22,480

7,591

Interest

79,831

Principal

$

-

-

4,790

-

-

15,801

$

Interest

-

-

-

251,868

28,175

-

-

$

Connect II Pier 2

561

-

-

$

Interest

-

-

48,331

84,145

26,580

119,766

-

5,165

$

$

-

25,076

47,545

-

4,009

-

$

-

5,327

3,293

44,808

2032-36

6,185

Principal

13,365

2027-31

2026

Interest

4,686

12,649

$

99,489

11,972

2025

88,606

39,533

Airport T-Hanger Building

Principal

14,383

11,819

$

$

$

39,272

West basin improvements

Principal

Lektro electrical upgrade

-

1,086,266

15,843

33,057

401,985

33,609

-

17,238

189,655
$

-

18,572

31,597

Principal

13,533

342,582

$

30,202

20,615

$

-

Interest

-

50,005

135,223
591,462
$

West basin breakwater

Principal

44,837

75,538

200,638

$

Interest

122,312

122,440

3,955

$

-

114,829

28,951

158,828

28,868

$

31,859

West basin floats

$

-

34,697

25,638

Principal

73,487

17,274

$

West basin breakwater II

Principal

136,362

1,393,458

22,377

555,842

20,473

$

24,057

130,494

2024

2042-2046

1,171,433

25,659

22,187

2026

2023

734,463

6,931

Interest

116,797

423,941

Airport E Hangar

2027-31

2022

$

187,501

Principal

2025

Fiscal Year

7,971

32,848

-

113,959
133,049

Interest

37,892

$

$

175,682

Lektro hanger expansion

219,050

2024

2032-36

$

36,130

2027-31

Fiscal Year

6,319,159

34,450

2025

2032-36

463,662

Principal

$

-

214,211

155,386

3,604,059
$

Lektro Building Expansion

Principal

195,282

572,318

2027-31

2022

$

552,718

2025

Fiscal Year

-

533,789

2024

2032-36

Interest

-

$

-

105,030

$

-

10,784
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Assessment obligation - Clatsop County settled a property tax dispute with Georgia Pacific-Wauna Mill on behalf of all the
taxing districts within the County during the fiscal year 2011-2012. The intergovernmental agreement previously entered
into by the taxing district was to issue bonds to pay the settlement, if needed. The county issued $2,550,000 of bonds
payable annually at 2.18% over ten years. As included in the intergovernmental agreement the annual principal and interest
payment will be taken from the first annual tax collection turnover. The Port’s proportionate share of the original obligation
was $24,058.
The Port’s obligation as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 is $2,449 and $4,883, respectively, maturing as follows:
Property Tax Assessment

2022

$
$

Principal

2,449
2,449

$
$

Interest

159

159

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS
The Port leases various parcels of submerged and submersible lands claimed by the State of Oregon. Lease payments made
to the State for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $126,224 and $135,846, respectively. Lease payments are
determined by the state annually, and minimum rentals are not specified.

Project commitments relate to unperformed contracts for goods or services, such as long-term contractual obligations with
suppliers for future purchases at specified prices and sometimes specified quantities. The Port has commitments under
various contracts amounting to approximately $3,937,300 primarily related to West Basin dredging, engineering design
services and construction for airport improvements. As of June 30, 2021, approximately $2,819,400 of these contracts
remain outstanding. A portion of these projects, approximately $1.7 million, will be completed through capital grant
funding.
NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN
General Information about the Pension Plan
The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan.

Employees of the Port are provided with pensions through OPERS. All the benefits of OPERS are established by the Oregon
legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A. OPERS issues a publicly available financial
report that can be obtained at https://www.oregon.gov/pers/EMP/Pages/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx.
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Benefits provided under Chapter 238-Tier One / Tier Two
1.

2.

3.

4.

Pension Benefits. The OPERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be selected from 13 retirement
benefit options. These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on years
of service and final average salary. A percentage (1.67 percent for general service employees) is multiplied by the
number of years of service and the final average salary. Benefits may also be calculated under either a formula plus
annuity (for members who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a money match computation if a greater
benefit results.

A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service retirement allowance if
he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar years or has reached at least 50 years of age before ceasing
employment with a participating employer. General service employees may retire after reaching age 55. Tier One
general service employee benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 58 with fewer than 30 years of service.
Tier Two members are eligible for full benefits at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed
to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.

Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the member’s
account balance (accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary will receive a lump-sum
payment from employer funds equal to the account balance, provided one or more of the following conditions are met:
•
Member was employed by a OPERS employer at the time of death,
•
Member died within 120 days after termination of OPERS-covered employment,
•
Member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a OPERS-covered job, or
•
Member was on an official leave of absence from a OPERS-covered job at the time of death.

Disability Benefits. A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from other than dutyconnected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness
qualifies a member for disability benefits regardless of the length of OPERS-covered service. Upon qualifying for either
a non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 when determining the monthly benefit.
Benefit Changes After Retirement. Members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities investment
account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the market value of equity
investments.
Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes.

Benefits provided under Chapter 238A-OPSRP Pension Program (OPSRP DB).
1.

Pension Benefits. The ORS 238A Defined Benefit Pension Program provides benefits to members hired on or after
August 29, 2003.

This portion of the OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions. Benefits are calculated with the
following formula for members who attain normal retirement age:

General service: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary. Normal
retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit.
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2.
3.
4.

A member of the OPSRP pension program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member
completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age,
and, if the pension program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective.

Death Benefits. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is constitutionally required
to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the pension that would otherwise have
been paid to the deceased member.
Disability Benefits. A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the member becomes
disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability benefit of 45 percent
of the member’s salary determined as of the last full month of employment before the disability occurred.
Benefit Changes after Retirement. Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living
changes.

Contributions:

OPERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates. These contributions,
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. This
funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment Benefit Plans.
Employer contribution rates during the period were based on the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation. The rates based
on a percentage of payroll, first became effective July 1, 2019.

Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 were $187,068 and $209,618, respectively.
The rates in effect for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were: (1) Tier1/Tier 2 – 15.64%, (2) OPSRP general
service – 12.83%. Beginning July 1, 2021, the Port’s employer contribution rates, based on the December 31, 2019 actuarial
valuation, will be (1) Tier 1/Tier 2 - 13.31%, (2) OPSRP general service - 11.64%.
Actuarial Valuations:
The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2019, through June 30, 2021, were set using the entry age normal actuarial
cost method. For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer
contribution rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned
by the employees during the current service year), (2) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued
liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized
over 20 years. For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an
employer contribution rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits
earned by the employees during the current service year), (b) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued
liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized
over 16 years.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used in Developing Total Pension Liability:
Valuation Date

Measurement Date

Experience Study Report
Actuarial Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Inflation Rate
Long-term Expected Rate of Return
Discount Rate
Projected Salary Increases
Cost of Living Adjustment
Mortality

December 31, 2018
June 30, 2020

2018, published July, 2019
Entry Age Normal

2.50 percent
7.20 percent
7.20 percent
3.50 percent
Blend of 2.00 percent COLA and graded COLA (1.25/.15 percent) in
accordance with Moro decision; blend based on service.
Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:
Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex,
Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs
as described in the valuation.

Active members:
Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social
Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as
described in the valuation.

Disabled retirees:
Pub-2010 Disable Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social
Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as
described in the valuation.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results
are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as of
December 31 of even numbered years. The methods and assumptions shown above are based on the 2018 Experience Study
which reviewed experience for the four-year period ending on December 31, 2018.

Discount Rate:

The discount rate used to measure the net total pension liability was 7.20 percent for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and those of
the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments for the
Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
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Depletion Date Projection
GASB 68 generally requires that a blended discount rate be used to measure the Total Pension Liability (the Actuarial
Accrued Liability calculated using the Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method). The long-term expected return on plan
investments may be used to discount liabilities to the extent that the plan’s Fiduciary Net Position (fair market value of
assets) is projected to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. A 20-year high quality (AA/Aa or higher)
municipal bond rate must be used for periods where the Fiduciary Net Position is not projected to cover benefit payments
and administrative expenses. Determining the discount rate under GASB 68 will often require that the actuary perform
complex projections of future benefit payments and asset values. GASB 68 (paragraph 67) does allow for alternative
evaluations of projected solvency, if such evaluation can reliably be made. GASB does not contemplate a specific method
for making an alternative evaluation of sufficiency; it is left to professional judgment.

The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation of sufficiency for Oregon PERS:
•
Oregon PERS has a formal written policy to calculate an Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), which is
articulated in the actuarial valuation report.
•
The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization period, which means that payment of the full ADC each year
will bring the plan to a 100% funded position by the end of the amortization period if future experience follows
assumption.
•
GASB 68 specifies that the projections regarding future solvency assume that plan assets earn the assumed rate
of return and there are no future changes in the plan provisions or actuarial methods and assumptions, which
means that the projections would not reflect any adverse future experience which might impact the plan’s funded
position.
Based on these circumstances, it is the PERS independent actuary’s opinion that the detailed depletion date projections
outlined in GASB 68 would clearly indicate that the Fiduciary Net Position is always projected to be sufficient to cover
benefit payments and administrative expenses.
Assumed Asset Allocation:

Asset Class/Strategy
Debt Securities
Public Equity
Real Estate

Low Range

25.0%

20.0%

9.5

15.5

12.5

27.5
14.0

Opportunity Portfolio

0.0

Risk Parity
Total

OIC
Target

15.0%

Private Equity

Alternatives Portfolio

High
Range

7.5

0.0

37.5
21.0

17.5
3.0

2.5

32.5
17.5
15.0
0.0

2.5

100.0 %

29

-- 49 --

PORT OF ASTORIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN (Continued)
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return:
To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in May 2019 the
PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the
Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman’s assumptions for each of
the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-term target asset allocation. The
OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each
asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the
inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forwardlooking capital market economic model.
Asset Class

Target

Compound Annual
Return (Geometric)

Core Fixed Income

9.60%

4.07%

High Yield Bonds

1.20

5.74

Short-Term Bonds

Bank/Leveraged Loans

9.60
3.60

Large/Mid Cap US Equities

16.17

Developed Foreign Equities

13.48

Private Equity

17.50

Small Cap US Equities

Micro Cap US Equities

Emerging Market Equities

Non - US Small Cap Equities
Real Estate (Property)
Real Estate (REITS)

Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversified
Hedge Fund – Event Driven
Timber

Farmland

Infrastructure

1.35
1.35
4.24
1.93

10.00
2.50

1.50
0.38
1.13
1.13
2.25

Commodities

Assumed Inflation – Mean

1.13

3.68
5.19
6.30

6.68
6.79
6.91
7.69
7.25
8.33
5.55
6.69
4.06
5.59
5.61
6.12
6.67
3.79
2.50

Sensitivity of the Port’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents
the Port’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.20 percent, as well as what
the Port’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1percentage point lower (6.20 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate:
Proportionate share of the net
pension liability

1% Decrease (6.20%)
$3,044,567

Discount Rate (7.20%)
$2,050,327

1% Increase (8.20%)
$1,216,612
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Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued OPERS financial report. The comprehensive annual financial report of the funds administered by the
OPERB may be obtained by writing to Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, P.O. Box 23700, Tigard, OR 972813700, by calling (503) 598-7377, or by accessing the PERS web site at www.pers.state.or.us.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the Port reported a liability of $2,050,327 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability, an
increase from $1,561,448 as of June 30, 2020. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31,
2018 and rolled forward to June 30, 2020. The Port’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the Port’s
projected long-term contribution effort as compared to the total projected long-term contribution effort of all employers.
Rates of every employer have at least two major components:
1. Normal Cost Rate: The economic value, stated as a percent of payroll, for the portion of each active member’s
total projected retirement benefit that is allocated to the upcoming year of service. The rate is in effect for as long
as each member continues in OPERS-covered employment. The current value of all projected future Normal Cost
Rate contributions is the Present Value of Future Normal Costs (PVFNC). The PVFNC represents the portion of the
projected long-term contribution effort related to future service.
2. UAL Rate: If system assets are less than the actuarial liability, an Unfunded Actuarial Liability (UAL) exists. UAL
can arise in a biennium when an event such as experience differing from the assumptions used in the actuarial
valuation occurs. An amortization schedule is established to eliminate the UAL that arises in a given biennium
over a fixed period of time if future experience follows assumption. The UAL Rate is the upcoming year’s
component of the cumulative amortization schedules, stated as a percent of payroll. The present value of all
projected UAL Rate contributions is simply the Unfunded Actuarial Liability (UAL) itself. The UAL represents the
portion of the projected long-term contribution effort related to past service.
3. Looking at both rate components, the projected long-term contribution effort is just the sum of the PVFNC and the
UAL. The PVFNC part of the contribution effort pays for the value of future service while the UAL part of the
contribution effort pays for the value of past service not already funded by accumulated contributions and
investment earnings.

The UAL has Tier 1/Tier 2 and OPSRP pieces. The Tier 1/Tier 2 piece is based on the employer’s Tier 1/Tier 2 pooling
arrangement. If an employer participates in one of the two large Tier 1/Tier 2 rate pools [State & Local Government Rate
Pool (SLGRP) or School Districts Rate Pool], then the employer’s Tier 1/Tier 2 UAL is just their pro-rata share of their pool’s
UAL. The pro-rata calculation is based on the employer’s payroll in proportion to the pool’s total payroll. For example, if the
employer’s payroll is one percent of the pool’s total payroll, the employer will be allocated one percent of the pool’s UAL.
The OPSRP piece of the UAL follows a parallel pro-rata approach, as OPSRP experience is mandatorily pooled at a statewide level. Employers that do not participate in a Tier 1/Tier 2 pooling arrangement, who are referred to as “Independent
Employers”, have their Tier 1/Tier 2 UAL tracked separately in the actuarial valuation.
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An employer’s PVFNC depends on both the normal cost rates charged on the employer’s payrolls, and on the underlying
demographics of the respective payrolls. For OPERS funding, employers have up to three different payrolls, each with a
different normal cost rate: (1) Tier 1/Tier 2 payroll, (2) OPSRP general service payroll, and (3) OPSRP police and fire payroll.
The employer’s Normal Cost Rates for each payroll are combined with system-wide present value factors for each payroll
to develop an estimated PVFNC. The present value factors are actuarially determined at a system level for simplicity and to
allow for the PVFNC calculations to be audited in a timely, cost-effective manner.

Since many governments in Oregon have sold pension obligation bonds and deposited the proceeds with OPERS (referred
to as side accounts or transitional liability or surplus), adjustments are required. After each employer’s projected long-term
contribution effort is calculated, that amount is reduced by the value of the employer’s side account, transitional
liability/surplus, and pre-SLGRP liability/surplus (if any). This is done as those balances increase/decrease the employer’s
projected long-term contribution effort because side accounts are effectively pre-paid contributions.

Looking at both rate components, the projected long-term contribution effort is just the sum of the PVFNC and UAL. The
PVFNC part of the contribution effort pays for the value of future service while the UAL part of the contribution effort pays
for the value of past service not already funded by accumulated contributions and investment earnings. Each of the two
contribution effort components are calculated at the employer-specific level. The sum of these components across all
employers is the total projected long-term contribution effort.

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Port’s proportion was 0.00939507 and 0.00902696 percent, respectively.

For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Port recognized pension expense of $466,626 and $390,432, respectively.

At June 30, 2021, the Port reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:
Differences between expected and actual experiences
Changes in assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on investments
Changes in proportionate share
Differences between employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions

Total (prior to post-measurement date contributions)
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date
Deferred Outflow/Inflow of Resources

Deferred Outflow of
Resources
$
90,239
110,035

$

3,855

241,092
58,571

65,048

537,269
187,068

78,544
-

37,332

$

Deferred Inflow of
Resources

724,337

9,641

$

78,544
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Port contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2022. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:
Employer subsequent fiscal
years
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Total

Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources (prior to postmeasurement date
contributions)
$
98,082
128,245
133,697
94,461
4,240
$

458,725

At June 30, 2020, the Port reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:
Differences between expected and actual experiences
Changes in assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on investments
Changes in proportionate share
Differences between employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions

Total (prior to post-measurement date contributions)
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date
Deferred Outflow/Inflow of Resources

Deferred Outflow of
Resources
$
86,109
211,828

$

-

20,087

44,265
103,262

379,888
209,618

147,527
-

61,864

$

Deferred Inflow of
Resources

589,506

-

$

147,527

Defined Contribution Plan
OPSRP Individual Account Program (OPSRP IAP)
Pension Benefits
Participants in OPERS defined benefit pension plans also participate in their defined contribution plan. An IAP member
becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the rollover account was established. If the
employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, the member becomes vested on the earliest of the
following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member
reaches normal retirement age, the date the IAP is terminated, the date the active member becomes disabled, or the date
the active member dies.

Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP Individual Account Program (IAP) may receive the amounts in his or her
employee account, rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a
5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a $200 minimum distribution
limit.
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Death Benefits
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s account balance, rollover
account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a retired member dies before the
installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining installment payments or choose a lumpsum payment.

Contributions
The Port has elected to pay the employee contributions to the plan for some employees equating to 6 percent of covered
payroll. The Port paid $27,393 and $26,810 for fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Recordkeeping
PERS contracts with VOYA Financial to maintain IAP participant records.
NOTE 10 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan description - The Port does not have a formal post-employment benefits plan for any employee groups; however, the
Port offers medical benefits to retirees who are eligible under a) PERS Tier 1 or 2, being age 55, or any age with 30 years of
service, or b) OPSRP member, being age 55 with 5 years of service. The Port pays the medical premiums for eligible retirees
until Medicare eligibility, and reimburses the Medicare Supplement premium thereafter.

In addition to the explicit medical benefits for certain retirees, continued medical coverage is offered to the Port’s eligible
retirees, their spouses and dependents until Medicare eligibility. The active premium rate, whether paid by the Port or by
the retiree, still applies.

In some cases the premium itself does not represent the full cost of covering retirees, as retirees are older than the active
population and can generate higher medical claims and premiums. This additional cost is called the “implicit subsidy” and
is required to be valued under GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions.
Of the Port’s 43 plan participants, 36 are active plan participants and 7 are inactive plan participants.

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs. The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2019 valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:
Actuarial cost method

Entry age normal, level percent of salary

Salary increases

3.5 percent

General inflation
Mortality rates

Discount rate

Healthcare cost trend rate

2.5 percent

General Service and Beneficiary table: Pub-2010 general
employees table, employee/healthy annuitant, sex
distinct, generational, set back 12 months for males, no
set back for females
2.25 percent

6.3% in 2019/20, declining annually
By 0.1% until 2037; 4.5% thereafter

Plan expenses other than benefit payments are not valued. The Plan is currently ‘unfunded’ as defined by GASB statements.
The Plan does not issue stand-alone financial reports.
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For the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Port recognized OPEB expense of $63,373 and $79,624, respectively.
Change in the total OPEB liability.

FY 2021

Total OPEB liability - beginning of year
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Benefit payments
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions

$ 1,037,923

45,306
23,947
(37,838)
-

Total OPEB liability - end of year

$ 1,069,338

FY 2020

$ 1,052,478

45,224
40,280
(47,134)
(177,357)
124,432

$ 1,037,923

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the Port’s total OPEB
liability calculated using the discount rate of 2.25 percent, as well as what the liability would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current discount rate:
Total OBEB Liability

1% Decrease
1.25%
$
1,256,000

Current Discount Rate
2.25%
$
1,069,338

1% Increase
3.25%
$
918,218

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare trend rates. The following presents the Port’s total
OPEB liability, as well as what the liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1
percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current trend rate:
Total OBEB Liability

$

1% Decrease
876,114

$

Current Trend Rate
1,069,338

$

1% Increase
1,324,355

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB. At June 30, 2021, the Port reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:
Differences between expected and actual experiences
Changes of assumptions or other input
Deferred Outflow/Inflow of Resources

$

$

Deferred Outflow of
Resources

96,780
96,780

$

$

Deferred Inflow of
Resources
137,945
137,945
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
Employer subsequent fiscal
years
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter
Total

Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of
Resources
$
(5,880)
(5,880)
(5,880)
(5,880)
(5,880)
(11,765)
$

(41,165)

At June 30, 2020, the Port reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following sources:
Deferred Outflow of
Deferred Inflow of
Resources
Resources
Differences between expected and actual experiences
$
$
157,651
Changes of assumptions or other input
110,606
Deferred Outflow/Inflow of Resources

$

110,606

$

157,651

OPERS Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA)
Plan description. As a member of OPERS, the Port contributes to the Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) for each
of its eligible employees. RHIA is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit plan
administered by OPERS. RHIA pays a monthly contribution toward the cost of Medicare companion health insurance
premiums of eligible retirees. ORS 238.420 established this trust fund. Authority to establish and amend the benefit
provisions of RHIA reside with the Oregon Legislature. The plan is closed to new entrants after January 1, 2004. OPERS
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That
report may be obtained by writing to Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, P.O. Box 23700, Tigard, OR 972813700.
Funding policy. Because RHIA was created by enabling legislation (ORS 238.420), contribution requirements of the plan
members and participating employers were established and may be amended only by the Oregon Legislature. ORS required
that an amount equal to $60 or the total monthly cost of Medicare companion health insurance premiums coverage,
whichever is less, shall be paid from the RHIA established by the employer, and any monthly cost in excess of $60 shall be
paid by the eligible retired member in the manner provided in ORS 238.410. To be eligible to receive a monthly payment
toward the premium cost the member must: (1) have eight years or more of qualifying service in PERS at the time of
retirement or receive a disability allowance as if the member had eight years or more of creditable service in PERS, (2)
receive both Medicare Parts A and B coverage, and (3) enroll in a PERS-sponsored health plan. An eligible surviving spouse
or dependent of a deceased PERS retiree may receive the subsidy if he or she (1) is receiving a retirement benefit or
allowance from PERS or (2) was insured at the time the member died and member retired before May 1, 1991.

Participating employers are contractually required to contribute to RHIA at a rate assessed each year by OPERS, currently
0.06% of annual covered payroll for Tier One/Tier Two, and 0.00% for OPSRP. The OPERS Board of Trustees sets the
employer contribution rate based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employers, an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 75. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid
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OPERS Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) (Continued)
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding
excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. With its funded status over 100%, the RHIA UAL contribution
rate was set to 0.00% for 2019-2021, a decrease of .43% from the UAL rate in effect for the 2017-2019 biennium. The Port’s
contributions to RHIA for the years ended June 30, 2021, 2020 and 2019 were approximately $147, $660, and $7,400,
respectively, and were included in the Port’s pension contributions.
NOTE 11 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Port provides a deferred compensation plan, established in 1971. Any employee or independently contracted person
may defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. The trust assets are held in a custodial trust for the exclusive
benefit of participants and beneficiaries, they are not subject to the claims of public employer creditors nor can they be
used by the public employer for any purpose other than the payment of benefits to those individuals participating in the
plan or their designated beneficiaries. Accordingly, the plan assets are not included in the statement of net position.
NOTE 12 - POLLUTION REMEDIATION OBLIGATION

Astoria Area-Wide Groundwater Contamination site - The Port has identified a number of contaminated areas on its
property that it is required to investigate, monitor, and at times address the identified contaminants under State
environmental laws. The Port was informed by the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (ODEQ) that the Port,
along with other potentially responsible parties (PRPs), is required to remediate contaminant identified in at least one of
the site areas. Although the Port may not bear ultimate responsibility for the contamination, under State law the Port is
presumptively liable as the property owner, and it is often practically and financially beneficial for the Port to take initial
responsibility to manage and pay for the cleanup. In each of these matters, the Port is cooperating with the notifying agency
and taking appropriate action with other PRPs to investigate and remediate pollution damage or contamination.

The Port has developed a procedure consistent with the current accounting standard to recognize liabilities for
environmental cleanups, to the extent that such liabilities can be reasonably estimated. The Port’s cleanup costs are
estimated based on reasonable and supportable assumptions, measured at current value using the expected cash flow
technique. The Port’s pollution cleanup cost estimate does not include cost components that are not yet reasonably
measurable and will change over time due to changes in costs of goods and services, changes in remediation technology,
and changes in governing laws and regulations.

In June 2019, the ODEQ issued a Record of Decision with estimated cleanup costs of $3,300,000. Consequently, the Port
reduced the estimated cleanup costs from $4,378,026 at June 30, 2018, to $3,300,000 at June 30, 2019. The Port had
anticipated successfully recovering Port incurred investigation and cleanup costs from other PRPs, and in April of 2020 a
settlement was agreed upon with McCall Oil and Exxon Mobile for the collective sum of $2.9 million. As of June 30, 2020,
the pollution remediation liability was adjusted to $1,241,702 for unrealized recoveries less attorney fees. In May of 2021,
the Port received an updated estimate that increased the cost estimate from $3,300,000 to $4,106,000. In addition, reduced
expected recoveries from PRPs contributed to an increase of $75,000, and a revised agreement with the Port’s attorneys
reduced the estimated attorney fees by $666,702. The net effect was an increase to the pollution liability estimate of
$214,298.
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Following is a summary of changes to pollution remediation obligation for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

Area-Wide groundwater contamination
Less third-party recoveries

Total pollution remediation obligation, net

Area-Wide groundwater contamination
Less estimated third-party recoveries

Total pollution remediation obligation, net

Pollution
remediation
obligation, net
June 30, 2020
$
$

3,300,000

$

1,241,702

$

(2,058,298)

Pollution
remediation
obligation, net
June 30, 2019
$
$

3,300,000

$

1,611,861

$

(1,688,139)

Additions

Reductions

Pollution
remediation
obligation, net
June 30, 2021

806,000

$

-

$

806,000

$ (591,702)

$

-

Additions

-

$

-

$

-

(591,702)

Reductions

(2,650,000)
1,456,000

Pollution
remediation
obligation, net
June 30, 2020

-

$

(370,159)

$

(370,159)

4,106,000

3,300,000

(2,058,298)
1,241,702
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The Port is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; and natural disasters for which the Port carries commercial insurance, but may still be exposed to some risk of
loss. No settlements of any claims exceeded the insurance coverage in the past three years.
NOTE 14 - CONTINGENCIES

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally
the federal and State of Oregon governments. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, could become a
liability of the Port. Management believes amounts disallowed, if any, would not be material to the Port.

The Port is a defendant in various lawsuits. The likely outcome of these lawsuits is not determinable at this time; however,
Port management intends to defend these lawsuits vigorously and believes the likely outcome will not have a material
adverse effect on the Port’s basic financial statements.

At the end of fiscal years 2021 and 2020, the Port was actively engaged in a lawsuit over the implementation of a $300
harbor fee on each oceangoing ship over 250 feet long headed up the Columbia. The Port maintains that the fee is reasonable
and is necessary for the maintenance of a deep-water emergency berth on Pier 1. For fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and
2020, the earned revenue from Harbor Fees was $399,600 and $370,800, respectively.
NOTE 15 – CONCENTRATIONS

In 2020, the Port had one major customer that accounted for approximately 12% of total revenue. There was no such
concentration in 2021.

39

-- 59 --

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

-- 60 --

PORT OF ASTORIA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2021

Schedule of Pension Contributions
Oregon Public Employee Retirement Pension Plan *
FY 2021

Contractually required contribution
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency/(excess)
Port's covered payroll

FY 2019

FY 2018

FY 2017

FY 2016

FY 2015

FY 2014

$ 187,068

$ 209,618

$ 171,706

$ 155,368

$ 143,700

$ 133,389

$ 127,024

$ 150,259

187,068

209,618

171,706

155,368

143,700

133,389

127,024

150,259

$1,588,448

$1,748,512

$1,795,642

$1,758,400

$1,713,293

$1,557,971

-

$1,452,644

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

FY 2020

12.9%

-

13.1%

-

-

9.8%

8.7%

-

-

8.2%

-

7.8%

-

$1,398,824

8.2%

10.7%

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Oregon Public Employee Retirement Pension Plan *
FY 2021

FY 2020

FY 2019

FY 2018

FY 2017

FY 2016

FY 2015

Port's proportion of the net pension
liability (asset)

0.00939507%

0.00902696%

0.00881592%

0.01008739%

0.01051450%

0.01084981%

0.01230561%

pension liability (asset)

$ 2,050,327

$ 1,561,448

$ 1,335,496

$ 1,359,784

$ 1,578,471

$

622,938

$

$ 1,588,448

$ 1,748,512

$ 1,795,642

$ 1,758,400

$ 1,713,293

$

1,557,971

$

129.1%

89.3%

74.4%

77.3%

92.1%

40.0%

(19.9)%

75.79%

80.23%

82.07%

83.12%

80.52%

91.90%

103.6%

Port's proportionate share of the net
Port's covered payroll

Port's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) as a
percentage of its covered payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension
liability

* 10-year trend information will be presented as it becomes available.

(278,933)
1,398,824

Notes to Schedules
Changes in Assumptions
A summary of key changes implemented with the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation which was used in the pension
calculations and amounts reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, along with additional detail and a comprehensive
list of changes in methods and assumptions from the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation can be found at:
www.oregon.gov/pers.
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Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Health Benefit Retiree Program *
FY 2021

FY 2020

Total OPEB liability - beginning of year
Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Benefit payments
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions

$ 1,037,923

$ 1,052,478

Port's covered employee payroll
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll

$ 1,069,338

$ 1,774,881
60.25%

$ 1,037,923

Total OPEB liability - end of year

45,306
23,947
(37,838)
-

45,224
40,280
(47,134)
(177,357)
124,432

$ 1,850,010
56.10%

$

FY 2019

1,019,322

43,695
38,131
(48,670)
-

$ 1,052,478

$ 1,969,781
53.43%

$

FY 2018

986,862

43,695
36,924
(48,159)
-

$ 1,019,322

$ 1,903,170
53.56%

* 10-year trend information will be presented as it becomes available.
Notes to Schedule

The Port does not hold assets in a trust that meets the criteria of GASB Statement 75, paragraph 4, to pay related benefits.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes, an individual schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balances requires budget and actual to be displayed for each fund where legally adopted budgets are required.
Budgetary Comparison schedules include the following funds:
General Fund

The General Fund is used to account for the operations of the Port's general operational expenses and property tax income
that is not reserved for debt service. These operations include the lease of industrial and commercial property, the airport,
including hangar rentals, and services provided to ships.
Special Revenue Fund

The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for timber tax revenues and other resources that are not used for ordinary
expenses of the Port. Expenditures are used primarily for capital outlay.
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund

The Capital Improvement Reserve Fund is used to allow for the accumulation and expenditure of reserves for capital
improvements.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES (USES), AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE – BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Budget

Variance with

Original

Final

Actual

Final Budget

$ 2,509,235

$ 2,509,235

$ 1,985,446

794,956

794,956

922,163

127,207

Rebilled expenses

1,857,571

1,857,571

1,267,142

(590,429)

Pier revenue

1,328,358

1,328,358

992,169

(336,189)

944,000

944,000

1,047,593

103,593

Other income

86,625

86,625

165,649

79,024

Property taxes

783,439

783,439

833,525

50,086

6,914,052

6,914,052

1,179,811

(5,734,243)

8,400

8,400

1,465

(6,935)

15,226,636

15,226,636

8,394,963

(6,831,673)

REVENUES:
Lease & rental income
Fuel sales

Marina revenue

Intergovernmental grants
Investment earnings
Total revenues

$ (523,789)

EXPENDITURES:
Materials and services

3,831,797

3,831,797

3,470,333

361,464

Personnel services

2,834,569

2,834,569

2,557,551

277,018

Principal *

297,910

297,910

147,176

150,734

Interest

180,362

180,362

142,939

37,423

8,641,294

8,641,294

2,792,897

5,848,397

15,785,932

15,785,932

9,110,896

6,675,036

(559,296)

(559,296)

(715,933)

(156,637)

Loan proceeds

-

-

1,345,000

1,345,000

Payment to refund loan

-

-

(1,296,652)

(1,296,652)

559,296

559,296

559,296

-

559,296

559,296

607,644

48,348

-

-

(108,289)

(108,289)

822,380

822,380

1,023,639

201,259

Debt service

Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)
Changes in fund balance
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS
FUND BALANCE, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS

$

822,380

$

822,380

$

915,350

$

92,970

*Budgeted as a single debt service item.
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PORT OF ASTORIA
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, OTHER FINANCING USE, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVENUES:
Timber revenue

OTHER FINANCING USE:

$

Transfer out

115,196

$

559,296

Net changes in fund balance

$

1,113,343

669,243

Final

115,196

$

559,296

(444,100)

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS
FUND BALANCE, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS

Original

Budget

$

669,243

198,864

Final Budget
$

559,296

(444,100)
1,113,343

Actual

Variance with

-

(360,432)

$

1,132,154

771,722

83,668

83,668

$

18,811

102,479
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PORT OF ASTORIA
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT RESERVE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Original

REVENUES:
Total revenues

$

EXPENDITURES:

Total expenditures

Net changes in fund balance

-

$

$

Final

-

$

Actual

Variance with
-

Final Budget
$

-

-

-

-

-

100,000

100,000

100,000

-

-

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING BUDGETARY BASIS
FUND BALANCE, ENDING BUDGETARY BASIS

Budget

100,000

-

$

100,000

-

$

100,000

-

$

-
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PORT OF ASTORIA
RECONCILIATION OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
TO CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Revenues

BUDGETARY BASIS REVENUES AND
EXPENDITURES

Revenues

Over (Under)

Expenditures

Expenditures

General Fund

$

8,394,963

$

9,110,896

$

(715,933)

TOTAL

$

8,593,827

$

9,110,896

$

(517,069)

Special Revenue Fund

Capital Improvement Reserve Fund

198,864

-

-

198,864

-

ADD (DEDUCT) ITEMS TO RECONCILE TO AN
ENTERPRISE FUND REPORTING BASIS
Capital outlay expenditures capitalized

2,792,897

Depreciation expense

(2,187,436)

Bad debt expense

(149,745)

Loss on disposal of capital assets

(183,095)

Proceeds from capital assets disposed

(11,870)

Payment of principal on notes payable

147,176

Change in property tax receivable

(11,343)

Change in prepaid expenses

(38,102)

Change in lease receivables

(7,500)

Change in inventory

40,261

Change in accrued interest payable

3,406

Change in unearned revenue

(24,016)

Change in tenant rent payable

21,771

Change in compensated absences

(18,266)

Change in pollution remediation

(214,298)

Change in net pension liability

(488,879)

Change in Clatsop County assessment

2,434

Change in total OPEB liability

(31,415)

Change in deferred outflows of resources – pension and OPEB
Change in deferred inflows of resources – pension and OPEB
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - GAAP

121,005

$

88,689

(665,396)
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Talbot, Korvola & Warwick, LLP 14945 SW Sequoia Parkway, Suite 150, Portland, Oregon 97224
P 503.274.2849 F 503.274.2853 www.tkw.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OREGON STATE REGULATIONS

Board of Commissioners
Port of Astoria
Astoria, Oregon

We have audited the financial statements of the Port of Astoria, Oregon (the Port), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 2021. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
COMPLIANCE
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Port’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 16210-000 through 162-10-330 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and
disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:
•

Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).

•

Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.

•

Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).

•

Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.

•

Programs funded from outside sources.

•

Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).

•

Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).

RSM US Alliance is a premier affiliation of independent accounting and consulting firms. RSM US Alliance provides its members
with access to resources of RSM US LLP. RSM US Alliance member firms are separate and independent businesses and legal
entities that are responsible for their own acts and omissions, and each are separate and independent from RSM US LLP. RSM US
LLP is the U.S. member firm of RSM International, a global network of independent audit, tax, and consulting firms. Visit
rsmus.com/aboutus for more information regarding RSM US LLP and RSM International. RSM US®, the RSM US Alliance logo and
the RSM US Alliance signatures are proprietary to RSM US LLP, while RSM™ is used under license by RSM US LLP.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OREGON STATE REGULATIONS (Continued)

COMPLIANCE (Continued)
In connection with our testing, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the Port was not in
substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions
of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-330 of the
Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, except as follows:
The published notice for the regular meeting on June 15, 2021 to adopt the budget for the year ending June
30, 2022 was published on June 15, 2021, which is not more than 30 days and not less than five days before
the Port’s Board of Commissioner’s meeting as required by ORS 294.438(1).
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Port’s internal control over
financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Port’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Port’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to
be material weaknesses.
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Commissioners, Oregon Secretary of State
Audits Division, and management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Portland, Oregon
October 25, 2021
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Talbot, Korvola & Warwick, LLP 14945 SW Sequoia Parkway, Suite 150, Portland, Oregon 97224
P 503.274.2849 F 503.274.2853 www.tkw.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Board of Commissioners
Port of Astoria
Astoria, Oregon
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the Port of Astoria, Oregon (the Port), as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Port’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 2021.
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Port’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Port’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

RSM US Alliance is a premier affiliation of independent accounting and consulting firms. RSM US Alliance provides its members
with access to resources of RSM US LLP. RSM US Alliance member firms are separate and independent businesses and legal
entities that are responsible for their own acts and omissions, and each are separate and independent from RSM US LLP. RSM US
LLP is the U.S. member firm of RSM International, a global network of independent audit, tax, and consulting firms. Visit
rsmus.com/aboutus for more information regarding RSM US LLP and RSM International. RSM US®, the RSM US Alliance logo and
the RSM US Alliance signatures are proprietary to RSM US LLP, while RSM™ is used under license by RSM US LLP.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the Port’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Portland, Oregon
October 25, 2021
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Commissioners
Port of Astoria
Astoria, Oregon
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
We have audited the Port of Astoria, Oregon’s (the Port) compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the Port’s major federal
program for the year ended June 30, 2021. The Port’s major federal program is identified in the Summary of
Auditor’s Results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Port’s major federal programs based on
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and
the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Port’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Port’s compliance.
OPINION ON MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
In our opinion, the Port complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2021.

RSM US Alliance is a premier affiliation of independent accounting and consulting firms. RSM US Alliance provides its members
with access to resources of RSM US LLP. RSM US Alliance member firms are separate and independent businesses and legal
entities that are responsible for their own acts and omissions, and each are separate and independent from RSM US LLP. RSM US
LLP is the U.S. member firm of RSM International, a global network of independent audit, tax, and consulting firms. Visit
rsmus.com/aboutus for more information regarding RSM US LLP and RSM International. RSM US®, the RSM US Alliance logo and
the RSM US Alliance signatures are proprietary to RSM US LLP, while RSM™ is used under license by RSM US LLP.

-- 74 --

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE (Continued)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
Management of the Port is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered the Port’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Portland, Oregon
October 25, 2021
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PORT OF ASTORIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Federal
Assistance
Listing Number

Pass Through
Number

20.106

DIRECT

AIP 25 - Apron Rehabilitation

20.106

DIRECT

69,894

-

AIP 26 - Apron Rehabilitation

20.106

DIRECT

355,278

-

Program Title
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Federal Aviation Administration:
Direct:
AIP 24 - Taxiway A Design & Construction

Total 20.106, Airport Improvement Program
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
Passed through Oregon Department of Administrative Services
COVID-19 Coronavirus Relief Fund
21.019

1220

Total 21.019, COVID-19 Coronavirus Relief Fund
Passed through Oregon Office of Emergency Management
FEMA - West Basin Sediment
97.036
FEMA - EMB, P1 Face, P3 Boatyard

97.036

Total 97.036, Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

PW213

Expenditures

$

594,753

Amounts
Provided to
Subrecipients

$

-

$

1,019,926

$

-

$

87,099

$

-

$

87,099

$

-

$

44,496

$

-

PW191

27,751

-

$

72,247

$

-

$

1,179,272

$

-

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Basics of Presentation
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the SEFA) includes the federal award activity of the Port
under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information in the SEFA is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the SEFA presents
only a selected portion of the operations of the Port, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes
in net assets, or cash flows of the Port.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the SEFA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. The Port has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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PORT OF ASTORIA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Financial Statements:
Type of report the auditor issued on whether
the financial statements audited were prepared
in accordance with GAAP:

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

None reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

No

Federal Awards:
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on
compliance for major federal programs:

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance with
section 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

No

Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s)
20.106

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Airport Improvement Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs:

$ 750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

No
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PORT OF ASTORIA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
No matters were reported.
SECTION III – FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

No matters were reported.
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PORT OF ASTORIA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDING
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

FINDING 2020-001
Audit Finding:

In accordance with Uniform Guidance, the grant agreement, and 49 CFR 18.41(4), the Port is required to
maintain a structure of internal control to ensure compliance with reporting. Annual reports are due
within 90 days after the federal grant year. The Port did not file the annual SF-425 form within 90 days
of the federal grant year ended September 30, 2019. There are no questioned costs noted as the
expenditures reported on the SF-425 form appeared eligible. The Port filed the SF-425 form on January
24, 2020 but it was due by December 29, 2019.

Corrective Action
Taken:
The Port implemented a process whereby the airport grant manager, Gary Kobes, prepared required
grant reporting documents and the Deputy Director, Matt McGrath, reviewed before submission.
Additionally, the airport grant manager and deputy director would ensure that all grant reporting
requirements are known and adhered to.

56

-- 79 --

PORT PLANNING AND MARKETING FUND
FINANCING CONTRACT
Project Name: Port of Astoria Boatyard Expansion Feasibility Study
Project Number: 521886
This financing contract (“Contract”), dated as of the date the Contract is fully executed, is made by the
State of Oregon, acting by and through its Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority of the Business
Development Department (“OBDD”), and the Port of Astoria (“Recipient”) for financing of the project
referred to above and described in Exhibit B (“Project”). This Contract becomes effective only when
fully signed and approved as required by applicable law. Capitalized terms not defined in section 1 and
elsewhere in the body of the Contract have the meanings assigned to them by Exhibit A.
This Contract includes the following exhibits, listed in descending order of precedence for purposes of
resolving any conflict between two or more of the parts:
Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C

General Definitions
Project Description
Project Budget
SECTION 1 - KEY TERMS

The following capitalized terms have the meanings assigned below.
Estimated Project Cost: $60,000.
Grant Amount: $45,000.
Project Close-Out Deadline: 90 days after the earlier of the Project Completion Date or the
Project Completion Deadline.
Project Completion Deadline: 12 months after the date of this Contract.
SECTION 2 - FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
Commitment. The OBDD shall provide Recipient, and Recipient shall accept from OBDD, financing for
the Project as a grant (the “Grant”) in an aggregate amount not to exceed the Grant Amount.
SECTION 3 - DISBURSEMENTS
A. Reimbursement Basis. The Financing Proceeds shall be disbursed to Recipient on an expense
reimbursement or costs-incurred basis. The Recipient must submit each disbursement request for the
Financing Proceeds on an OBDD-provided or OBDD-approved disbursement request form
(“Disbursement Request”).
B. Financing Availability. The OBDD’s obligation to make and Recipient’s right to request
disbursements under this Contract terminates on the Project Closeout Deadline.
C. OBDD Share; Withholding. No more than 75% of the Costs of the Project may be paid with the
Financing Proceeds. OBDD shall withhold 10% of the Financing Proceeds until its acceptance of the
Feasibility Study (“Final Work Product”). OBDD will consider any recommendation by the Ports
Peer Review Committee prior to final acceptance. Pursuant to this subsection, each disbursement of
Financing Proceeds prior to final acceptance will be in an amount equal to the total amount of
expenses satisfactorily documented in the Disbursement Request multiplied by 65%.
521886 Port of Astoria Contract.docx
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SECTION 4 - CONDITIONS PRECEDENT
A. Conditions Precedent to OBDD’s Obligations. The OBDD’s obligations are subject to the receipt of
the following items, in form and substance satisfactory to OBDD and its Counsel:
(1)

This Contract duly signed by an authorized officer of Recipient.

(2)

Such other certificates, documents, opinions and information as OBDD may reasonably
require.

B. Conditions to Disbursements. As to any disbursement, OBDD has no obligation to disburse funds
unless all following conditions are met:
(1)

There is no Event of Default.

(2)

The representations and warranties made in this Contract are true and correct on the date of
disbursement as if made on such date.

(3)

The OBDD, in the reasonable exercise of its administrative discretion, has sufficient moneys in
the Fund for use in the Project and has sufficient funding, appropriations, limitations,
allotments and other expenditure authority to make the disbursement.

(4)

The OBDD (a) has received a completed Disbursement Request, (b) has received any written
evidence of materials and labor furnished to or work performed upon the Project, itemized
receipts or invoices for payment, and releases, satisfactions or other signed statements or forms
as OBDD may require, (c) is satisfied that all items listed in the Disbursement Request are
reasonable and that the costs for labor and materials were incurred and are properly included in
the Costs of the Project, and (d) has determined that the disbursement is only for costs defined
as eligible costs under the Act and any implementing administrative rules and policies.

(5)

The Recipient has delivered documentation satisfactory to OBDD that, in addition to the
Financing Proceeds, Recipient has available or has obtained binding commitments for all funds
necessary to complete the Project.

(6)

Any conditions to disbursement elsewhere in this Contract are met.
SECTION 5 - USE OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

A. Use of Proceeds. The Recipient shall use the Financing Proceeds only for the activities described in
Exhibit B and according to the budget in Exhibit C. The Recipient may not transfer Financing
Proceeds among line items in the budget without the prior written consent of OBDD.
B. Costs of the Project. The Recipient shall apply the Financing Proceeds to the Costs of the Project in
accordance with the Act, and Oregon law as applicable. Financing Proceeds cannot be used for costs
in excess of one hundred percent (100%) of the total Costs of the Project and cannot be used for preAward Costs of the Project, unless permitted by Exhibit B.
C. Costs Paid for by Others; No Administrative or Operating Costs. The Recipient may not use any of
the Financing Proceeds to cover costs to be paid for by other financing for the Project from another
State of Oregon agency or any third party, nor to cover general administrative costs or port operating
expenses.
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SECTION 6 - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF RECIPIENT
The Recipient represents and warrants to OBDD:
A. Estimated Project Cost, Funds for Repayment. A reasonable estimate of the Costs of the Project is
shown in section 1, and the Project is fully funded.
B. Organization and Authority.
(1)

The Recipient is an eligible port under the Act, and validly organized and existing under the
laws of the State of Oregon.

(2)

The Recipient has all necessary right, power and authority under its organizational documents
and under Oregon law to (a) execute and deliver this Contract, (b) incur and perform its
obligations under this Contract, and (c) receive financing for the Project.

(3)

This Contract has been duly executed by Recipient, and when executed by OBDD, is legal,
valid and binding, and enforceable in accordance with its terms.

C. Full Disclosure. The Recipient has disclosed in writing to OBDD all facts that materially adversely
affect the Project, or the ability of Recipient to perform all obligations required by this Contract. The
Recipient has made no false statements of fact, nor has it omitted information necessary to prevent
any statements from being misleading. The information contained in Exhibit B is true and accurate
in all respects.
D. Pending Litigation. The Recipient has disclosed in writing to OBDD all proceedings pending (or to
the knowledge of Recipient, threatened) against or affecting Recipient, in any court or before any
governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal, that, if adversely determined, would
materially adversely affect the Project or the ability of Recipient to perform all obligations required
by this Contract.
E. No Events of Default.
(1)

No Events of Default exist or occur upon authorization, execution or delivery of this Contract.

(2)

The Recipient has not violated, and has not received notice of any claimed violation of, any
agreement or instrument to which it is a party that would materially adversely affect the Project
or the ability of Recipient to perform all obligations required by this Contract.

F. Compliance with Existing Agreements and Applicable Law. The authorization and execution of, and
the performance of all obligations required by, this Contract will not: (i) cause a breach of any
agreement to which Recipient is a party that would materially adversely affect the Project or the
ability of Recipient to perform all obligations required by this Contract; (ii) violate any provision of
the charter or other document pursuant to which Recipient was organized or established; or (iii)
violate any laws, regulations, ordinances, resolutions, or court orders related to Recipient, the Project
or its properties or operations.
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SECTION 7 - COVENANTS OF RECIPIENT
The Recipient covenants as follows:
A. Notice of Adverse Change. The Recipient shall promptly notify OBDD of any adverse change in the
activities, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of Recipient or the Project related to the
ability of Recipient to perform all obligations required by this Contract.
B. Compliance with Laws. The Recipient shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and
orders of any court or governmental authority that relate to this Contract and the Project. In
particular, but without limitation, Recipient shall comply with the state procurement regulations
found in the Oregon Public Contracting Code, ORS Chapters 279A, 279B and 279C. These laws,
rules, regulations and orders are incorporated by reference in this Contract to the extent required by
law.
C. Project Completion Obligations. The Recipient shall:
(1)

When procuring professional consulting services, provide OBDD with copies of all
solicitations at least 10 days before advertising, and all contracts at least 10 days before
signing.

(2)

Complete the Project using its own fiscal resources or money from other sources to pay for any
Costs of the Project in excess of the total amount of financial assistance provided pursuant to
this Contract.

(3)

Complete the Project no later than the Project Completion Deadline, unless otherwise
permitted by the OBDD in writing.

(4)

Recipient shall reasonably acknowledge in some public fashion, such as in promotional
materials, final reports, web site and public statements, acknowledging that the Project was
funded in part with Oregon State Lottery Funds administered by the Oregon Business
Development Department.

D. Records Maintenance. The Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents, papers,
and records that are directly related to this Contract, the Project or the Financing Proceeds for a
minimum of six years, or such longer period as may be required by other provisions of this Contract
or applicable law, following the later of the Project Completion Deadline, actual completion of the
Project or final completion and satisfaction of all reporting requirements of Recipient under this
Contract. If there are unresolved issues at the end of the six-year period, Recipient shall retain the
books, documents, papers and records until the issues are resolved.
E. Economic Benefit Data. The OBDD may require Recipient to submit specific data on the economic
development benefits of the Project and other information to evaluate the success and economic
impact of the Project, from the date of this Contract until six years after the Project Completion
Date. The Recipient shall, at its own expense, prepare and submit the data within the time specified
by OBDD.
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F. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. ORS 200.090 requires all public agencies to “aggressively
pursue a policy of providing opportunities for disadvantaged business enterprises, minority-owned
businesses, woman-owned businesses, businesses that service-disabled veterans owned and
emerging small businesses...” The OBDD encourages Recipient in any contracting activity to follow
good faith efforts as described in ORS 200.045, available at
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors200.html. Additional resources are provided by
the Governor’s Policy Advisor for Economic and Business Equity. Also, the Certification Office for
Business Inclusion and Diversity at the Oregon Business Development Department maintains a list
of certified firms and can answer questions. Search for certified firms on the web at:
https://oregon4biz.diversitysoftware.com/FrontEnd/VendorSearchPublic.asp.
G. Professional Responsibility. All service providers retained for their professional expertise will be
certified, licensed, or registered, as appropriate, in the State of Oregon for their specialty.
H. Notice of Event of Default. The Recipient shall give OBDD prompt written notice of any Event of
Default, or any circumstance that with notice or the lapse of time, or both, may become an Event of
Default, as soon as Recipient becomes aware of its existence or reasonably believes an Event of
Default is likely.
I. Indemnity. To the extent authorized by law, Recipient shall defend (subject to ORS chapter 180),
indemnify, save and hold harmless OBDD and its officers, employees and agents from and against
any and all claims, suits, actions, proceedings, losses, damages, liability and court awards including
costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees incurred related to any actual or alleged act or omission by
Recipient, or its employees, agents or contractors; however, the provisions of this section are not to
be construed as a waiver of any defense or limitation on damages provided for under Chapter 30 of
the Oregon Revised Statutes or under the laws of the United States or other laws of the State of
Oregon.
SECTION 8 – EVENTS OF DEFAULT
Any of the following constitutes an “Event of Default”:
A. Any false or misleading representation is made by or on behalf of Recipient, in this Contract or in
any document provided by Recipient related to the Project.
B. The Recipient fails to perform any obligation required under this Contract, other than those referred
to in subsection A of this section 8, and that failure continues for a period of 30 calendar days after
written notice specifying such failure is given to Recipient by OBDD. The OBDD may agree in
writing to an extension of time if it determines Recipient instituted and has diligently pursued
corrective action.
SECTION 9 - REMEDIES
A. Remedies. Upon any Event of Default, OBDD may pursue any or all remedies in this Contract and
any other remedies available at law or in equity to enforce the performance of any obligation of
Recipient. Remedies may include, but are not limited to:
(1)

Terminating OBDD’s commitment and obligation to make the Grant or disbursements under
the Contract.

(2)

Barring Recipient from applying for future awards.

(3)

Requiring repayment of the Grant and all interest earned by Recipient on those Grant funds.
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B. Application of Moneys. Any moneys collected by OBDD pursuant to section 9.A will be applied
first, to pay any attorneys’ fees and other fees and expenses incurred by OBDD; then, as applicable,
to repay any Grant proceeds owed; and last, to pay any other amounts due and payable under this
Contract.
C. No Remedy Exclusive; Waiver; Notice. No remedy available to OBDD is intended to be exclusive,
and every remedy will be in addition to every other remedy. No delay or omission to exercise any
right or remedy will impair or is to be construed as a waiver of such right or remedy. No single or
partial exercise of any right power or privilege under this Contract shall preclude any other or further
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other such right, power or privilege. The OBDD is not
required to provide any notice in order to exercise any right or remedy, other than notice required in
section 8 of this Contract.
D. Default by OBDD. In the event OBDD defaults on any obligation in this Contract, Recipient’s
remedy will be limited to injunction, special action, action for specific performance, or other
available equitable remedy for performance of OBDD’s obligations.
SECTION 10 - MISCELLANEOUS
A. Time is of the Essence. The Recipient agrees that time is of the essence under this Contract.
B. Relationship of Parties; Successors and Assigns; No Third Party Beneficiaries.
(1)

The parties agree that their relationship is that of independent contracting parties and that
Recipient is not an officer, employee, or agent of the State of Oregon as those terms are used in
ORS 30.265.

(2)

Nothing in this Contract gives, or is to be construed to give, directly or indirectly, to any third
persons any rights and benefits greater than those enjoyed by the general public.

(3)

This Contract will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of OBDD, Recipient, and their
respective successors and permitted assigns.

(4)

The Recipient may not assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations or any interest in this
Contract without the prior written consent of OBDD. The OBDD may grant, withhold or
impose conditions on such consent in its sole discretion. In the event of an assignment,
Recipient shall pay, or cause to be paid to OBDD, any fees or costs incurred because of such
assignment, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees of OBDD’s Counsel. Any approved
assignment is not to be construed as creating any obligation of OBDD beyond those in this
Contract, nor does assignment relieve Recipient of any of its duties or obligations under this
Contract.

(5)

The Recipient hereby approves and consents to any assignment, sale or transfer of this Contract
that OBDD deems to be necessary.

C. Disclaimer of Warranties; Limitation of Liability. The Recipient agrees that:
(1)

The OBDD makes no warranty or representation, either express or implied, as to the value,
design, condition, merchantability or fitness for particular purpose or fitness for any use of the
Project or any portion of the Project, or any other warranty or representation.

(2)

In no event are OBDD or its agents liable or responsible for any direct, indirect, incidental,
special, consequential or punitive damages in connection with or arising out of this Contract or
the existence, furnishing, functioning or use of the Project.
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D. Notices and Communication. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Contract, any
communication between the parties or notices required or permitted must be given in writing by
personal delivery, email, or by mailing the same, postage prepaid, to Recipient or OBDD at the
addresses set forth below, or to such other persons or addresses that either party may subsequently
indicate pursuant to this Section.
Any communication or notice by personal delivery will be deemed effective when actually delivered
to the addressee. Any communication or notice so addressed and mailed will be deemed to be
received and effective five (5) days after mailing. Any communication or notice given by email
becomes effective 1) upon the sender’s receipt of confirmation generated by the recipient’s email
system that the notice has been received by the recipient’s email system or 2) the recipient’s
confirmation of receipt, whichever is earlier. Notwithstanding this provision, the following notices
may not be given by email: notice of default or notice of termination.
If to OBDD:

Assistant Director, Economic Development
Oregon Business Development Department
775 Summer Street NE Suite 200
Salem OR 97301-1280

If to Recipient:

Deputy Director
Port of Astoria
422 Gateway Ave. Suite 100
Astoria, OR 97103

E. No Construction against Drafter. This Contract is to be construed as if the parties drafted it jointly.
F. Severability. If any term or condition of this Contract is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction
as illegal, invalid or unenforceable, that holding will not invalidate or otherwise affect any other
provision.
G. Amendments, Waivers. This Contract may not be amended without the prior written consent of
OBDD (and when required, the Department of Justice) and Recipient. This Contract may not be
amended in a manner that is not in compliance with the Act. No waiver or consent is effective unless
in writing and signed by the party against whom such waiver or consent is sought to be enforced.
Such waiver or consent will be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose
given.
H. Attorneys’ Fees and Other Expenses. To the extent permitted by the Oregon Constitution and the
Oregon Tort Claims Act, the prevailing party in any dispute arising from this Contract is entitled to
recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs at trial and on appeal. Reasonable attorneys’ fees
cannot exceed the rate charged to OBDD by its attorneys.
I. Choice of Law; Designation of Forum; Federal Forum. The laws of the State of Oregon (without giving
effect to its conflicts of law principles) govern all matters arising out of or relating to this Contract,
including, without limitation, its validity, interpretation, construction, performance, and
enforcement.
Any party bringing a legal action or proceeding against any other party arising out of or relating to
this Contract shall bring the legal action or proceeding in the Circuit Court of the State of Oregon for
Marion County (unless Oregon law requires that it be brought and conducted in another county).
Each party hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of such court, waives any objection to
venue, and waives any claim that such forum is an inconvenient forum.
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Notwithstanding the prior paragraph, if a claim must be brought in a federal forum, then it must be
brought and adjudicated solely and exclusively within the United States District Court for the District of
Oregon. This paragraph applies to a claim brought against the State of Oregon only to the extent
Congress has appropriately abrogated the State of Oregon’s sovereign immunity and is not consent
by the State of Oregon to be sued in federal court. This paragraph is also not a waiver by the State of
Oregon of any form of defense or immunity, including but not limited to sovereign immunity and
immunity based on the Eleventh Amendment to the Constitution of the United States.
J. Integration. This Contract (including all exhibits, schedules or attachments) constitutes the entire
agreement between the parties on the subject matter. There are no unspecified understandings,
agreements or representations, oral or written, regarding this Contract.
K. Execution in Counterparts. This Contract may be signed in several counterparts, each of which is an
original and all of which constitute one and the same instrument.
The Recipient, by its signature below, acknowledges that it has read this Contract, understands it, and
agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.

STATE OF OREGON
acting by and through its
Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority
of the Business Development Department

By:

PORT OF ASTORIA

By:
Edward Tabor, Manager
Programs & Incentives

Date:

Frank Spence, Commission President

Date:

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY IN ACCORDANCE WITH ORS 291.047:
Not Required per OAR 137-045-0030
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EXHIBIT A - GENERAL DEFINITIONS
As used in this Contract, the following terms have the meanings below.
“Act” means ORS 285A.654 through 285A.660, as amended.
“Award” means the award of financial assistance to Recipient by OBDD dated 15 Sep 2021.
“Costs of the Project” means Recipient’s actual costs (including any financing costs properly
allocable to the Project) that are (a) reasonable, necessary and directly related to the Project, (b)
permitted by generally accepted accounting principles to be Costs of the Project, and (c) are eligible or
permitted uses of the Financing Proceeds under applicable state or federal statute and rule.
“Counsel” means an attorney at law or firm of attorneys at law duly admitted to practice law before
the highest court of any state, who may be of counsel to, or an employee of, OBDD or Recipient.
“Financing Proceeds” means the proceeds of the Grant.
“ORS” means the Oregon Revised Statutes.
“Project Completion Date” means the date on which Recipient actually completes the Project.
EXHIBIT B - PROJECT DESCRIPTION; SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF THE PROJECT
I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION
Recipient will hire a qualified consultant to develop a written feasibility study that includes the
following elements:
• Stakeholder interviews including management/owners of other regional boatyards, fishermen, city
and county commissioners.
• Financial analysis and examination of market feasibility for expansion opportunities for the
boatyard.
• Preliminary engineering analysis to determine preliminary project cost estimates.
II. SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF THE PROJECT
Recipient will provide an opportunity for the Port Commission and public to review and comment on the
project objectives, reports and products. Recipient will document how this requirement is met in the
final project completion report.
EXHIBIT C - PROJECT BUDGET
Line Item Activity

Consultant for Feasibility Study

Total
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OBDD Funds

Other / Matching Funds

$45,000

$15,000

$45,000

$15,000
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